
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Nicola Meurer, Democratic Services Officer, 
Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422523

E-mail: nicola.meurer@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 12 June 2017

Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY 20 JUNE 2017 AT 6.30 PM

THE AMEY THEATRE, ABINGDON SCHOOL, PARK ROAD, ABINGDON, OX14 
1DE

Members of the Committee:
Sandy Lovatt (Chairman)
Janet Shelley (Vice-
Chairman)
Stuart Davenport
Jenny Hannaby
Anthony Hayward

Bob Johnston
Ben Mabbett
Chris McCarthy
Catherine Webber

St John Dickson
Robert Hall

Preferred Substitutes 
Mike Badcock
Ed Blagrove
Yvonne Constance
Margaret Crick

Gervase Duffield
Vicky Jenkins
Monica Lovatt

Helen Pighills
Julia Reynolds
Emily Smith

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.



2

1. Chairman's announcements  

To receive any announcements from the chairman, and general housekeeping 
matters.

2. Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

3. Minutes  (Pages 5 - 10)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the 
meeting held on 1 March 2017.  

4. Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

5. Urgent business  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.  

6. Public participation  

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.  

Planning applications

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports 
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working 
file) and referenced by its application number.  These are available to view at the 
Council Offices (135 Milton Park, Milton) during normal office hours.

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting.



3

Summary index of applications

Site Address Proposal Application No Page

7. P17/V0050/O - 
Land north of 
Dunmore Road 
and Twelve 
Acre Drive, 
Abingdon  

Outline application (with all matters 
reserved except for principal means 
of access to the highway) for 
residential development including: 

 Up to 900 dwellings
 50 retirement homes (use 

class C3)
 Local centre
 2.2HA site for a 1.5 form entry 

primary school
 Community hub
 Care home comprising up to 

80 beds
 Children’s nursery 
 Public house/restaurant, retail 

and other services (use 
classes A1, A2, A3, A4, A5, 
B1, C2, D1 and D2) 

 Public open space
 Recreation areas and sports 

pitches (including sports 
pavilion and multi-use games 
area)

 Play areas 
 Acoustic bund with fencing
 Associated infrastructure 

including roads, sewers and 
attenuation ponds

P17/V0050/O 11 - 78

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic Services



This page is intentionally left blank



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 1 March 2017 Pl.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Planning Committee
held on Wednesday, 1 March 2017 
at 6.30 pm
in the The Ridgeway, The Beacon, Portway, 
Wantage, OX12 9BY

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 

Members: Councillors Sandy Lovatt (Chairman), Janet Shelley (Vice-Chairman), 
Yvonne Constance (In place of Chris Palmer), Stuart Davenport, Jenny Hannaby, 
Anthony Hayward, Bob Johnston, Monica Lovatt, Ben Mabbett, Chris McCarthy and 
Catherine Webber

Officers: Ben Coleman, Martin Deans, Emily Hamerton, Susan Harbour, Charles 
Packham, Ian Price, Penny Silverwood and Hanna Zembrzycka-Kisiel

Also present: Councillor Eric Batts and Councillor Gervase Duffield
Ian Marshall and Jason Sherwood from Oxfordshire county Council Highways Department
David Baldwin -  Drainage Officer, Monson Engineering Ltd

Number of members of the public: 85

Pl.180 Notification of substitutes and apologies for absence 

Councillor Chris Palmer tendered his apologies to the meeting and Councillor Yvonne 
Constance attended as his substitute.

Pl.181 Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 1 February 2017 were agreed by the committee and 
signed by the chairman as an accurate record of the meeting. 

Pl.182 Declarations of pecuniary interests and other declarations 

There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest.

Pl.183 Chairman's announcements 

The Chairman welcomed the public and members of the committee to the meeting.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Vale Of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 1 March 2017 Pl.2

The chairman gave information on the new constitution and on the changes for planning 
committee, including the guillotine arrangements, which are as follows: 

No meeting shall exceed two and a half hours in duration unless the committee, prior to 
the expiry of the period, vote for the meeting to continue for a further period not exceeding 
30 minutes. Remaining business will be considered at the next meeting.

The new constitution meant that cabinet members could no longer sit on planning 
committee. Therefore councillor Eric Batts was no longer on the committee and had been 
replaced by Councillor Chris Palmer.

Pl.184 Urgent business 

There were no items of urgent business.

Pl.185 Statements and petitions from the public on planning 
applications 

The registered speakers list was tabled at the meeting and each speaker would be heard 
with the relevant agenda item.

Pl.186 P15/V2353/O Land off Hobbyhorse Lane, Sutton Courtenay, 
Abingdon 

In addition to the planning officers, the following were in attendance at the meeting to 
respond to technical questions on the application:

Ian Marshall and Jason Sherwood from Oxfordshire County Council Highways Department
 
Charles Packham – Environment Officer
Ben Coleman -  Environmental Protection Team Leader 

David Baldwin -  Drainage Officer, Monson Engineering Ltd

The officer presented the report and addendum on application P15/V2353/O for outline 
planning permission for up to 200 dwellings, including vehicular access, pedestrian and 
cycle links, public open space, car parking, landscaping, drainage and associated works. 
Including additional documentation submitted 31 January 2017. She confirmed that the 
Sutton Courtenay Neighbourhood Plan is in draft form and does not carry any weight at 
this stage.

Councillors David Hignell and Karl Gebhart from Sutton Courtenay Parish council spoke in 
objection to the application, they raised the following concerns:
 Highways issues;
 Application site too close to the landfill site;
 The protesters have commissioned their own hydrology expert who has produced a 

report showing, in his opinion, the lack of suitability of the site;
 Impact on Frilsham Street, making access and egress to some of the driveways very 

difficult; 
 A difficult pinchpoint on Hobbyhorse Lane;

Page 6



Vale Of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 1 March 2017 Pl.3

 Impact on Village Hall users, cyclists, pedestrians and equestrians; and
 Parish council and village hall have not been notified of changes to the footpath which 

runs across their land.

The committee asked questions of clarification of the speakers.

Anne Morgan Smith spoke on behalf of herself, Rita Twiston Davies and Rita Atkinson 
(trustee of Sutton Courtenay Village Hall) and Stuart Findlay also spoke in objection to the 
application. They raised the following concerns:
 Industrial waste water and chemical waste very close to the site;
 Ground water levels very high on the site;
 Drainage issues: flawed drainage scheme;
 Flies dust and rats may be on the site;
 Potential negative impact on local amenities; and
 Undeliverability: the ownership of the by-way from where it ceases to be a public 

highway. The applicant needs the consent from the landowners and this has not been 
demonstrated.

The committee asked questions of clarification of the speakers.

The chairman reminded the committee that this application was for outline planning 
permission and access details only.

David Bainbridge, the agent for the application, Matt Russell and Alan Brackley (on behalf 
of the developer) spoke in favour of the application:
 The developer has worked with the council and other organisations/ stakeholders over 

two years and the technical consultees do not have any outstanding objections to this 
application; and

 Works will be subject to conditions and technical considerations.

The committee asked questions to the speakers:
 An explanation was requested as to why the developer’s opinion on drainage issues 

was at odds with the opinion of Doctor Rodders, the drainage expert commissioned by 
the objectors. In response, the developers stated that their methodology was different 
and that they had used more bore holes. They had undertaken their monitoring in 
March 2016, but they took into account the worst case scenario: February 2014, and 
their drainage system would work with February 2014 figures.

 The issues with the ownership of the access ground in front of the village hall: the 
developers stated that the correct notification was served in September 2015, no 
objections were received.

Councillor Gervase Duffield, the ward member spoke in objection to the application.
 He raised concerns about the safety of the site and the potential contamination from 

the proximity to the landfill site.
 The drainage officer’s report was full of caveats and concerns.
 The ward member showed several videos and photos of the site and adjacent land 

being flooded and methane gas escaping.

Members of the committee asked questions of the ward member. His responses were:
 The entire FCC Environment site had been subject to flooding on several occasions;
 Since the planning inspector made his original decision in favour of the site, more 

evidence had subsequently emerged.

Page 7



Vale Of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 1 March 2017 Pl.4

The committee asked questions to the officers:
 In regard to the Local Plan Part 1 where the planning inspector had said that this was 

a suitable site: paragraphs 5.6 and following of the officer’s report cover this issue. The 
inspector agreed to the principle of developing the site, but subject to overcoming the 
outstanding concerns. These concerns had to be drilled into in more detail in this 
particular application and would be raised at the reserved matters stage;

 The principle of housing on the site is supported by the Local Plan as an allocated site 
and therefore weight has to be given to it. The committee needed to consider whether 
it finds this particular application acceptable;

 Charles Packham, the environment officer, confirmed that methane could travel 
through groundwater but that it would not be an issue for this site because 
groundwater migrates away from the site;

 David Baldwin, the Monson drainage engineer, confirmed that as a result of the 
discussions with the experts, the drainage scheme was improved, particularly as more 
of the site would now be available for attenuation and less for housing if it were 
necessary;

 Conditions 6 and 7 would have to be fulfilled if the application were to come back 
under reserved matters. David Baldwin considered that the conditions were 
comprehensive and would be adequate to satisfy outstanding concerns;

 The highways engineers from Oxfordshire County Council considered that the road 
pinch-point would serve as a traffic calming measure;

 The proposed drainage system is based on a one metre separation buffer between 
base and groundwater levels to prevent pollution, but the one metre is not guaranteed. 
There is no separation in the worst case. In that instance there would need to be 
pollution prevention measures taken outside of the attenuation basin through an 
interceptor;

 The access road would be 4.1 metres across;
 The neighbourhood plan for Sutton Courtenay had not yet been submitted and so 

cannot be afforded significant weight;
 There are wider traffic issues within Sutton Courtenay than just this pinch-point. The 

officers from Oxfordshire County Council acknowledged significant problems at the 
river crossing on the Abingdon Road and that there would be benefit to wider studies; 
and

 It may be necessary to design a more detailed drainage system to cope with times of 
high water, where the ground water is high.

The Development Manager recommended that the committee defer consideration of the 
application for further investigations on highways and drainage.

The committee proposed and seconded a motion to refuse the application on grounds of:
 Highways issues;
 Inadequate drainage;
 Inadequate access arrangements;
 Odour on the site;
 Potential risks to health, especially pregnant women and young children.

A motion, moved and seconded to refuse the application, was declared carried on being 
put to the vote.

RESOLVED
To refuse the planning application.

Page 8



Vale Of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 1 March 2017 Pl.5

The Development Manager invoked a “cooling off period”, in accordance with the Council’s 
published constitution, which states the following:

The Head of Planning (or her/his nominee may) invoke in the following circumstances a 
‘cooling off period’ following a decision taken by the planning committee: where the 
committee refuses an application on grounds that the head of planning / or an officer 
authorised by him/her considers it puts the council at significant risk of having a cost award 
made against it in the event of an appeal being lodged. 

If the Cabinet member for planning confirms this decision on the second working day after 
the date on which the decision was taken, then no decision notice will be issued but a 
further report will be brought to the committee at the first opportunity setting out the 
relevant issues and inviting it to reconsider the matter.

Pl.187 P16/V2433/FUL - 1 Larch Close, Southmoor, Abingdon 

Emma Turner, planning enforcement team leader, and Ian Price, senior litigation and 
planning lawyer, were present for this item to answer questions from the committee.

The officer introduced the report on a retrospective application P16/V2433/FUL for the 
erection of a new two-bedroom dwelling adjoining 1 Larch Close at 1 Larch Close, 
Southmoor, Abingdon.

Consultations, presentations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report, supplementary guidance and addendum report which 
formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Ian Price gave guidance to the committee on making a decision based on substantive 
planning issues and substantive merits.

Brian Foster representative of the parish council spoke in objection to the application:
 He believed that there had been a deliberate attempt by the applicant to create a separate 

dwelling;
 He did not consider that sufficient enforcement had been carried out by Vale to stop 

development of this building.

Ian Jones, on behalf of Southmoor residents spoke in objection to the application: 
 He believed that the applicant had practiced deception in connection with this application.

The committee asked questions to the objector.
 The objector believed that this application is being investigated by the police for fraud.

Gareth Bertram, agent for the applicant spoke in favour of this application:
 He believes that in order for his company to remain viable, it is important for him to retain 

options in relation to development.

The committee asked questions to the agent.

Councillor Eric Batts spoke as the ward member for this application
 All of the properties in this close are semi-detached and this has now created an out of 

character terracing effect;
 The application was not submitted for what the intention was;

Page 9



Vale Of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Wednesday, 1 March 2017 Pl.6

 Amenity space is not satisfactory and there is no third bedroom.

The committee asked questions for the officers
Paragraphs 5.6 to 5.9 cover the internal conversion of the property.

An additional condition was requested to restrict Permitted Development Rights on turning 
these properties into a House in Multiple Occupation.

Parking and impact on neighbours are all adequate;
Drainage issues are being supervised by building control officers.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application with additional conditions, was 
declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED
To grant planning permission subject to conditions as follows:

1. Approved plans;
2. Matching materials;
3. Access in accordance with plan;
4. Car parking in accordance with plan;
5. No drainage to the highway;
6. Restriction of permitted development rights for extensions and outbuildings for both 

properties;
7. Restriction of permitted development rights for walls and fences from both properties;
8. Landscaping scheme to be submitted;
9. Landscaping scheme to be implemented;
10. Boundary details to be submitted;
11. Surface water and foul drainage details to be submitted;
12. Removal of permitted development rights for Houses in Multiple Occupation from both 

properties.

Pl.188 Eastwest, All Saints Lane, Sutton Courtenay, Abingdon 

This is a part retrospective application for the retention and construction of earth bunds 
and the change of use of land to private recreational use at Eastwest, All Saints Lane, 
Sutton Courtenay, Abingdon. Application P16/V0254 FUL.

The committee were in the guillotine extension period at the start of this application and 
there was not time to consider it. It has, therefore been deferred.

The meeting closed at 9.10 pm

Page 10



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

APPLICATION NO. P17/V0050/O
SITE Land north of Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive, 

Abingdon
PARISHES SUNNINGWELL and RADLEY
PROPOSAL Outline application (with all matters reserved except 

for principal means of access to the highway) for 
residential development of  

 Up to 900 dwellings  
 50 retirement homes (use class C3)
 Local centre
 2.2HA site for a 1.5 form entry primary school
 Community hub
 Care home comprising up to 80 beds
 Children's nursery 
 Public house/restaurant, retail and other 

services (use classes A1, A2, A3, A4, A5, B1, 
C2, D1 and D2) 

 Public open space
 Recreation areas and sports pitches (including 

sports pavilion and multi-use games area)
 Play areas 
 Acoustic bund with fencing
 Associated infrastructure including roads, 

sewers and attenuation ponds
(As amended by drawings and information 
accompanying agent's letter dated 2 May 2017)

WARD MEMBERS Debby Hallett
Emily Smith
Edward Blagrove
Bob Johnston

APPLICANT CEG Land Promotions II Limited
OFFICERS Peter Brampton and Sally Appleyard

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that authority to grant planning permission is 
delegated to the head of planning subject to: 

1: A S106 agreement being entered into in order to secure contributions 
towards local infrastructure and to secure affordable housing, and;

2: Conditions as follows: 

Approved plans, commencement, reserved matters & site wide documents
1. Approved plans and document list.
2. Approved land uses.
3. Commencement – Whichever is earlier of i) three years from outline 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V0050/O


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

permission or ii) two years from final approval of first reserved matters 
application.

4. First reserved matters application submitted within two years.
5. All reserved matters application submitted within eight years of first 

commencement.
6. Site-wide development delivery strategy to be agreed.
7. Housing delivery document to be agreed.
8. Contents of reserved matters application as specified.
9. No more than 950 dwellings on the site.
10.No more than 150 dwellings occupied prior to written confirmation of 

central government funding for Lodge Hill slip roads.  No more than 400 
dwellings occupied prior to Highway Authority letting contract for Lodge 
Hill slip road construction works.

11.Development in accordance with mitigation measures within the 
environmental statement dated December 2016 (appendices, strategies 
and addendum).

12.Market housing as specified.
13.Site wide phasing plan to be agreed.
14.Construction environmental management plan to be agreed.
15.Construction traffic management plan to be agreed.

Pre-commencement conditions
16.Energy delivery strategy to be agreed.
17.Hard and soft landscaping to be agreed.
18.Tree protection to be agreed.
19.Landscape management and maintenance to be agreed.
20.Woodland management plan to be agreed.
21.Noise impact assessment to be agreed.
22.Noise mitigation scheme for local centre to be agreed.
23.Biodiversity enhancement plan to be agreed.
24.Landscape and ecology management plan to be agreed.
25.Written scheme of archaeological investigation to be agreed.
26.Staged programme of archaeological mitigation to be agreed.
27.Lighting scheme to be agreed.
28.Waste management and minimisation strategy to be agreed.
29.Surface water drainage scheme to be agreed.
30.On and off site drainage works (surface and foul water) to be agreed. 
31.Sample materials to be agreed.
32.Accesses and visibility splays onto highway network to be agreed.
33.Bus stops on Oxford Road to be agreed.
34.Site accesses to be agreed.
35.Broadband provision to be agreed.
36.Community employment plan to be agreed.
37.Air quality and dust mitigation measures to be agreed.

Pre-occupation conditions
38.Assessment of ground conditions for sport pitches to be agreed.
39.Sports pitches, MUGA and pavilion to be agreed.
40.Management and maintenance scheme for sports facilities to be agreed.
41.Community use scheme for playing fields to be agreed.

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

42.Hours of operation for non-residential uses to be agreed.
43.Roads, footways and street lighting to be agreed.
44.Access, parking and turning to be agreed.
45.Connections to on and off-site roads and footpaths to be agreed.
46.Cycle parking to be agreed.
47.Residential travel plan and travel information pack to be agreed.

Compliance conditions
48.Noise mitigation and insulation to be implemented as agreed.
49.Bin storage to be demonstrated within each reserved matters application.
50.Approved boundary treatments to be provided prior to occupation of 

dwelling to which they relate.
51.Vehicular access, driveways, parking and turning to be completed as 

approved prior to use.
52.Garage accommodation to be retained.
53.All garages to include provision for electric vehicle recharging.
54.No road or footway intended for adoption to be constructed prior to legal 

agreement with the Highways Authority.
55.No materials to be deposited on any public right of way (PRoW).
56.No construction vehicles to use any PRoW.
57.No residential or commercial access along any PRoW.
58.No gate access to open onto any PRoW.
59.All non-residential buildings to achieve BREEAM (Building Research 

Establishment Environmental Assessment Method) “Very Good” 
certification.

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
1.1 This application is referred to planning committee due to the size of the 

development.

1.2 The application relates to a site of approximately 54 hectares of agricultural 
land on the northern edge of Abingdon.  The site broadly consists of three 
parcels of land running in a broad arc from the western boundary with Tilsley 
Park to Radley Park and Peachcroft Farm to the east.  The site abuts the A34 
to the northwest of the western parcel, Lodge Hill sits to the north with the 
easternmost parcel being divided from the central parcel by the A4183/Oxford 
Road.
 

1.3 The Location Plan over the page shows the site in its local context:

Page 13



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

1.4 Existing trees largely define the site boundaries, with a small area of Ancient 
Woodland copse to the north at Lodge Hill.  A number of established 
hedgerows define the field boundaries within the site.  A watercourse runs 
east-west in the western parcel of the site, meaning a small portion of this 
parcel falls within Flood Zones 2 and 3.  The remainder of the site falls within 
Flood Zone 1.  Two public rights of way cross the site.  Bridleway 372/13 runs 
north-south through the central parcel, whilst Footpath 326/5 runs diagonally 
across the eastern parcel, accessible from Twelve Acre Drive.

1.5 Although clearly related to Abingdon, the application site actually falls within 
the parishes of Sunningwell and Radley.  Broadly, the western and central 
parcels fall within Sunningwell parish, whilst the eastern parcel falls within 
Radley parish.

1.6 The eastern and western parcels are relatively flat.  The central parcel has 
around a ten metre fall from its northern to southern boundary.  

1.7 With the exception of field accesses, there is no existing vehicular access to 
the site.

1.8 This application seeks outline planning permission with all matters reserved 
other than the principal means of access to the site.  The application proposes 
the following:

 Up to 900 dwellings
 50 retirement homes (restricted to 65 years+);
 Public open space, recreation areas and sports pitches (including 

sports pavilion and Multi-Use Games Area);
 Acoustic bund with fencing along the boundary with the A34;
 Local Centre comprising –

1. 15 of the total proposed dwellings
2. A 1.5 form entry primary school on a 2.22 hectare site

Page 14



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

3. Community hub (400 square metres)
4. Up to 80-bed care home
5. Children’s nursery (600 square metres)
6. Public house/restaurant (700 square metres)
7. A1 food retail unit (300 square metres)
8. Non-food retail (300 square metres)
9. Commercial services (300 square metres)

 Associated infrastructure including roads, sewers and attenuation 
ponds.

1.9 The applicants propose a varied approach to residential densities across the 
site.  On the countryside edges of the development, densities will not exceed 
25 dwellings to the hectare, whilst closer to the Local Centre, densities will 
increase to around 40 dwellings to the hectare.  If the development were built 
out as above, the average density across the site would be 33.9 dwellings to 
the hectare, providing a range of dwelling types and sizes.

1.10 The Local Centre is within the central part of the site, close to one of the main 
accesses onto Dunmore Road, and will provide a range of complemantary 
facilities in a mixed-use hub around a focal public open space.

1.11 The site provides a policy compliant level of public open space, NEAPs and 
LEAPs and sports pitches (including a pavilion and MUGA) in the 
southeastern corner of the site.

1.12 Acoustic bunding is proposed along the northwestern edge of the development 
adjacent to the A34.  This bund will be an earth mound, incorporating native 
planting to soften its appearance.  A number of SuDS attenuation ponds are 
required, being proposed along the Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive 
frontages as the low point of the site.

1.13 In terms of vehicular access, four main T-junctions are proposed.  One on the 
western parcel onto Dunmore, a second from the central parcel onto Dunmore 
Road close to the Local Centre, and two onto Twelve Acre Drive from the 
eastern parcel.  No vehicular access is proposed onto Oxford Road.

1.14 A number of pedestrian and cycle routes are propsoed across the site, whilst 
Footpath 326/5 referenced in Para 1.4 will need to be diverted to integrate into 
the layout for the eastern parcel.

1.15 Extracts from the current application parameter plans are attached as 
Appendix One.  All forms, plans and documentation submitted in support of 
the application are available to view at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.

2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 Below is a summary of the responses received to both the original plans and 

the amendments. A full copy of all the comments made can be viewed online at 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.

Page 15

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
file:///C:/home$/Downloads/www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

2.2 Consultee Comments
Sunningwell 
Parish Council

No objections. The following concerns have been raised:
 Traffic implications without the development of the 

south facing slip roads at Lodge Hill
 Light pollution from the development
 Impact of floodlighting school playing fields
 Impact on flood zone

Radley Parish 
Council

Holding Objection to original proposal.

Comments on amended plans have not yet been 
received and an update will be offered to planning 
committee

Main concerns
 Position of buffer planting at east end of site
 Housing Mix – Proposals to take account of the 

results of Radley Parish Council’s survey of housing 
requirements; and to provide for a proportion of 
larger units (3+ bedroom) which is no greater than 
the SHMA guideline.

 Provision of cycle/pedestrian access to Radley 
Station from the east of the site to White’s Lane 
along the line of the former public road across land 
in the ownership of the development site owners.

 S106 contributions sought towards:
- Proposed new cycleway to Radley Station
- Additional secure bike storage at Radley Station 

and other station enhancements. 
- Radley Parish Councils Radley Lakes Strategy. 

 Proposals to take account of relevant policies in the 
draft Radley Neighbourhood Plan: Radley Lakes 
Strategy, cycling and walking and improve cycle 
access to Radley Station, improve facilities at 
Radley station.

Abingdon 
Town Council

No objections, raise the following concerns:

Traffic and Access
 Delivery of the south facing slip roads at Lodge Hill
 Traffic implications without the slip roads
 Consider that the slip roads should be delivered 

before any development commences
 Transport statement is invalid if the slip roads are 

not delivered
 Concerns regarding Highways England response 

Page 16



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

regarding impact of proposal on the A34
 County Council response to be incorporated into any 

planning permission
 Improvements required to local road network to 

mitigate impact on additional traffic
 Speed limit on Dunmore Road to be reduced to 

30mph
 The site to also be access from Oxford Road

Air Quality
 The air quality assessment has assumed the south 

facing slip roads to be in place and in use by 2020
 Without the slip roads, there would be significant air 

quality impacts on the local road system and air 
quality in Abingdon

Cycle access to Radley Station
 Proposed route in application for cyclists to go 

between the proposed development to the station is 
neither safe or convenient

 Support the construction of a new cycle route as 
proposed in the Radley draft Neighbourhood Plan

 Provision of this proposed cycle route to be secured 
by condition

Wootton Road Roundabout
 Concerns regarding the design of the roundabout 

and impact this has on the safety of cyclists when 
crossing the roundabout

Health Services
 Concerns that there are no proposals for a new 

health centre
 Long Furlong Medical Centre is not in a position to 

take on additional patients and there is no room to 
expand

 Health care facilities have not been adequately 
provided within the proposals

 Health centre to be provided within the local centre 
and secured by condition

Flood Risk
 Concerns regarding the EA response with regards 

to impact on flood risk
 EA to be fully satisfied with the arrangements in 

place to mitigate flood risk

Page 17



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

Waste Water and Water Supply Infrastructure
 Concerned about Thames Water response 

regarding insufficient capacity of existing waste 
water infrastructure and existing water supply 
infrastructure

 Conditions recommended by Thames Water to be 
part of any planning permission

Oxfordshire 
County Council 
(OCC) One 
Voice 

Overall – No objection

 Transport – No objection subject to S106 
contributions, a S278 agreement and conditions

Summary

- Lodge Hill slips considered necessary to mitigate 
the traffic impacts of the proposal

- Application assumes Lodge Hill slips will be 
delivered, diverting a large proportion of trips 
heading south to the new junction – this is 
necessary to ensure capacity in the highway 
network

- Supportive of proposed pedestrian and cycle 
links within and from site, and crossings on 
Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive

- Need for direct walking/cycling route from site 
towards Radley Station – existing route 
substandard

- Detailed application will need to show parking in 
line with County Council standards and tracking 
for larger vehicles

- Trip generation rates are acceptable
- Contribution to 35 bus route extension requested
- Travel Plan and Travel Information Pack to be 

provided to all new residents

Section 278 to include:
- Dunmore Road/Oxford Road/Twelve Acre Drive 

roundabout
- Dunmore Road/Wootton Road/Copenhagen 

Drive
- Footway/cycleway towards Radley Station (if 

within public highway land)
- Footway/cycleway in all locations on submitted 

plans
- Road crossings

Page 18



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

- Cycle parking
- Associated works

            Conditions requested:
- Access details
- Foul and Surface Water Drainage
- Construction Method Statement
- Construction Traffic Management Plan
- Occupancy restriction until Lodge Hill slips 

funded/delivery contract let
- Travel Plan and Travel Information Pack
- Countryside Access conditions – 

obstructions/alterations/vehicle access/gates

 Archaeology - No objection, subject to conditions 
Summary: The applicant has submitted an 
archaeological desk based assessment and a 
geophysical survey of the application area. A 
condition should be imposed requiring a staged 
programme of archaeological investigation and 
recording in advance of development following the 
approval of a Written Scheme of Investigation.

 Economy and Skills - No objection subject to 
condition requiring a community employment plan.

 Education - No objection subject to conditions and 
Section 106 contributions
Summary: This site is estimated on a policy 
compliant mix to generate sufficient primary pupils to 
fill a 1FE school. However, to meet the needs of this 
development and the other Local Plan strategic site 
at North West Abingdon-on-Thames, a 1.5 FE 
school will be required on a 2.22 ha site. 
School site and design
- Detailed plans will need to show three accesses 

onto the school site.

 Property – No objection, subject to conditions and 
Section 106 contributions
Summary: Contributions towards library, waste 
management and adult day care facilities.

 Waste Management – No objection
Summary: The statements in the Planning 
Statement and Sustainability Statement that specific 
provision will be made for recycling storage and 
ample segregated waste storage space is 

Page 19



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

supported, and proposals for achieving this should 
be fully developed and set out in the detailed 
planning application. 

Highways 
England

No objection in principle
 It needs to be demonstrated there would not be a 

detrimental impact to the safe and efficient operation 
of the A34 from an improved junction.

 No objection in principle to the development set out 
in the application, however without consideration of 
a scenario without south facing slips at A34 Lodge 
Hill, it is unclear if the impacts to the A34 and local 
roads has been assessed and therefore a 
deliverable transport mitigation package identified.

 An assessment of the impact to the A34 and its 
junctions as a result of proposals is required

 Consideration will need to be given to the cumulative 
impact of already planned growth

 Concerned that currently there is insufficient detail 
available to understand the level of infrastructure 
required to facilitate the potential level of car based 
trips, particularly during peak periods. The level of 
development trips from a proposal of this size could 
potentially have an adverse impact to the A34 
without consideration of a package of targeted 
mitigation measures.

Environmental 
Health – Air 
Quality

Holding Objection until Lodge Hill slip road project 
secured

 Concerns that development as proposed will 
introduce a number of extra junctions and pedestrian 
crossings which could impede traffic flow along the 
northern relief road and reduce the desire to use this 
route in favour of alternative routes which could 
include the town centre where there is an Air Quality 
Management Area and where congestion is a 
problem.

 Proximity of the development site to the road system 
which serves the centre of Abingdon where there is 
an AQMA - Major concerns that there will be severe 
impacts on congestion, particularly along Colwell 
Drive and Marcham Road/Ock St, where congestion 
is already an issue and nitrogen dioxide levels are 
close to the objective. Whilst this area is not part of 
the AQMA, monitoring indicates that nitrogen dioxide 
levels in this area are close to the objective and any 
significant increase in emissions in this area could 

Page 20



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

result in the objective being exceeded and the need 
to extend the AQMA to include Marcham Road.

 Modelling of air quality impacts indicated that the 
predicted increases in emissions associated with the 
development will be acceptable. The modelling has 
been based on traffic data provided by transport 
consultants. This transport assessment has 
identified junctions considered most likely to 
experience a material impact. Significantly the 
Colwell Drive/Marcham Road junction has been 
omitted from this list of junctions to be assessed. It 
has also not been included in the air quality 
assessment.  This is a fundamental omission, which 
fails to take into consideration that this junction is the 
point where the northern relief route (which includes 
Dunmore Road) meets the A415 and carries 
significant traffic accessing the A34, where there is 
access to/from southbound slips. At peak times this 
junction results in significant congestion in and 
around Colwell Drive/Marcham Road/ Drayton Road 
and Ock St and the town centre. Any significant 
additional traffic on Colwell Drive is only likely to 
exacerbate the congestion on Marcham Road/Ock 
St and associated emissions to air in this area. This 
could impact negatively on the AQMA and possibly 
require the extension of the AQMA to include 
Marcham Road if the air quality objective is 
exceeded.

 The transport and air quality assessments are based 
on the assumption that the south facing slips at 
Lodge Hill will be in place and in use by 2020. With 
south facing slips at Lodge Hill in place this 
proposed development could be feasible, without 
there will be significant air quality impacts on the 
local road system and air quality in Abingdon and 
this would be unacceptable.  

 If outline permission is granted that this will be 
subject to a condition requiring a scheme to mitigate 
the dust/air quality impacts of the development on 
the local area and beyond, and include provision for 
electric vehicle recharging points at each property 
with a garage. 

Environment 
Agency

Holding Objection to original proposal.

Comments on amended plans have not yet been 
received and an update will be offered to planning 

Page 21



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

committee

 Flood Risk 
- Inadequate assessment of the existing flood risk, 

and risk arising from the proposed development, 
including an allowance for climate change.

- Assessment of any loss of floodplain storage 
within the 1% annual probability flood extent with 
an appropriate allowance for climate change, and 
mitigation provided.

 Biodiversity 
- Inadequate buffer zone to the on-site 

watercourses and ponds

Drainage 
Engineer

No objections, subject to conditions
 On and off site drainage works to be agreed
 Surface water drainage scheme to be agreed

Thames Water No objections, subject to conditions
 Foul Water Drainage works to be agreed

Countryside 
Officer Vale

No objections, subject to conditions
 CEMP (Biodiversity) prior to commencement of 

each phase
 Biodiversity Enhancement Plan (BEP)
 Landscape and Ecology Management Plan (LEMP) 

prior to occupation of each phase

Landscape 
Architect Vale

No objection, subject to conditions. 
 The Design Code and mitigation contained within the 

LVIA are applied to the detailed design of the site
 Full details of soft and hard landscaping proposals 

along with a Maintenance and management Plan

Sport England No objection, subject to conditions
 Design and layout of playing fields, MUGA and 

Pavilion
 Assessment of ground conditions
 Management and maintenance scheme for the 

facilities
 Community use scheme.

Environmental 
Health - 
Environmental 
Protection 
Team

No objection, subject to condition
 Full implementation of the mitigation measures 

identified in the accompanying acoustic report 
(including the proposed acoustic barrier)

Page 22



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

Leisure No objection, subject to financial contributions being 
secured

 Play provision to be arranged as 1x NEAP, 3x 
LEAPs and 4x (100sqm) LAPs, all meeting Fields in 
Trust standards, including for accessibility.

 Ideally, football and cricket pitches should not be 
overlaid. 

Waste 
Management 
Officer Vale

No objections, contribution to wheeled bins for each 
house required.

Conservation 
Officer Vale

No objection, subject to the details at full application stage 
for materials, heights, planting mitigation strategies to 
protect settings of heritage assets. 

Urban Design 
Officer

No objection overall. Concerns raised to original 
submission however not all concerns have been addressed 
within the amendment:

 Lanes/ shared private drives – These should be 
connected to provide a greater choice of routes and 
therefore increasing permeability throughout. The 
illustrative masterplan and the tree constraints plan/ 
illustrative plan drawing do not tally with each other. 
The latter connects the private lanes and would be 
the preferred option. There
are also differences in street trees and soft 
landscaping between the two.

 It would be useful to refer the principles of the Vale 
Design Guide 2015 throughout the code.

 ‘Other considerations’ – should become mandatory 
principles (e.g. walls and courtyards, refuse and 
waste
collection, utilities and storage). It is important to 
ensure that these items are considered from the 
outset and do not become an afterthought.

 Check meaning of first key principle for walls on 
page 146 of the code.

 The code should specify the quality and key 
principles of materials chosen for specific locations 
in the development. Not addressed.

 Consider accessibility issues regarding street 
furniture (e.g. arm rest/ back rest)

 It is important to show how the new development 
would link with Tilsey Park.

 The code should explain how the retail units will be 
serviced. These should be conveniently located at 

Page 23



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

the back. 
 Street lighting and utilities should also be 

considered to ensure an integrated street design. To 
be picked up at reserved matters stage. Covered 
partially under other considerations within the code.

Oxford City 
Council 
(Planning)

No objections. Raised the following issues:
 Lack of clarity about the extent to which the 

proposal is seeking to address unmet housing need 
from Oxford. The City Council would welcome a 
clarification of which housing needs this proposal is 
seeking to address. 

 If any part of the proposal is seeking to address 
Oxford unmet housing needs then it will be critical to 
understand how the sustainable travel links to 
Oxford (particularly public transport and cycling links 
to the key employment areas) will be secured and 
delivered via Section 106 and CIL. 

Equalities 
Officer Vale

No objection overall; Concerns raised regarding access 
for people with disabilities; comments regarding detailed 
design for any subsequent reserved matters or detailed 
applications.

Forestry Team No objection; comments regarding detailed design for any 
subsequent reserved matters or detailed applications.

SGN Plant 
protection 
team

No objections. Informative regarding gas pipes in the area 
and safe digging practices.

Environmental 
Health – 
Contaminated 
land

No objection

Natural 
England

No objection 

Historic 
England

No comments

Local 
Residents
Representation
s

A total of 186 objections or comments raising concerns 
have been lodged to the application by local residents 
(including from Abingdon, Sunningwell, Radley, Marcham, 
Drayton and Oxford);

 155 were received to the original consultation in 
January 2017

Page 24



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

 31 were received to the second consultation in May 
2017

These objections and concerns are summarised as follows:

Highways and traffic
 Unacceptable level of additional traffic on A34 and 

local roads;
 Roads are at capacity and cannot cope with 

additional traffic from a development of this size;
 Funding and delivery of Lodge Hill south facing slip 

roads;
 No assessment of the impact of the development if 

the Lodge Hill south facing slip roads are not in 
place;

 Minimal improvements proposed to local roads 
elsewhere in Abingdon;

 Turning right onto Dunmore Road is already 
challenging;

 Existing junctions along Dunmore Road and Twelve 
Acre Drive to be improved;

 Access for residents of Lodge Hill will be difficult and 
dangerous;

 Development to be accessed from Oxford Road 
rather than Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive;

 Additional access to be provided on Oxford Road;
 Mini roundabouts to be considered on Dunmore 

Road and Twelve Acre Drive;
 Speed limits to be reduced to enhance safety and 

reduce noise;
 Concerned when traffic modelling was undertaken 

and whether this fully represents the current 
situation;

 Location and design of new access proposed off of 
Dunmore Road and impact on existing residential 
dwellings in terms of light pollution;

 Impact of construction traffic on traffic flows;
 No suitable mitigation measures for increase in 

vehicular traffic;
 Insufficient protection of expansion of A34;
 Re-surfacing of A34 required to reduce noise 

impacts;
 Parking provision at new sports facilities is 

inadequate;
 Inadequate contribution of the developers to the 

infrastructure costs of the expansion of Abingdon.

Infrastructure

Page 25



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

 Development will result in additional pressure on 
GPs and schools;

 New medical and dentist facilities are required;
 Insufficient capacity at Long Furlong Medical 

Centre;
 Delivery of primary school;
 Lack of provision for secondary school expansion; 
 Additional demand on Abingdon Library;
 Inappropriate location of football pitches and impact 

on safety due to proximity to the road;
 Management and maintenance of new community 

and sports facilities;
 Retirement homes in community hub is 

unsustainable due to noise;
 Queries regarding the viability of a pub/restaurant 

given that several others in Abingdon have closed 
down and viability of commercial premises.

Development
 The increase in houses over the local plan is 

unjustified and unnecessary;
 The density is too high and results in a cramped 

layout with houses too close to the A34;
 Cumulative impact should be assessed;
 Little provision of affordable housing;
 Consideration to be given to brownfield sites (e.g. 

Dalton Barracks) before developing Green Belt land;
 The position of the playing fields;
 Question the need for further sports pitches next to 

Tilsley Park;
 Concerns regarding viability of local amenities 

proposed;
 Building heights to be limited to 2.5 storeys to 

reduce visual impact on Dunmore Road and to 
prevent overlooking;

 The proposal is detrimental to amenities of existing 
residents; 

 Not a sustainable location;
 The development does not integrate well with 

Abingdon and will appear isolated;
 Size of development is not acceptable;
 Mix of housing is not acceptable;

Environmental
 Encroachment into Green Belt is unjustified;
 Harmful impact on ecology and wildlife on the site;
 Noise impacts;
 Impact of the noise bund on residents to the north of 

the A34 at Sunningwell

Page 26



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

 Air pollution impacts;
 Increased traffic emissions on Abingdon Air Quality 

management Area;
 An assessment of the cumulative air quality impact 

of all the local developments is required;
 To ensure the development is consistent with the 

local air quality action plan;
 It would increase flood risk;
 Insufficient capacity for waste water and water 

supply infrastructure;
 The current drainage, sewerage and water supply 

system is unable to accommodate the proposed 
development;

 Large water mains and natural gas mains passing 
under the land have been ignored;

 Harmful impact on existing watercourses;
 Loss of tress along north side of Twelve Acre Drive 

to facilitate new access;
 Floodlighting of sports pitches would be harmful to 

residents;
 Noise and light pollution from sports pitches would 

be harmful to existing and new residents;
 Loss of views;
 Location of school next to A34 and impact on health 

and safety of children;
 Would create a poor environment for residents so 

close to the A34;
 Suitable protection should be made so as not to 

disturb the ecosystems that exist close to Blake’s 
Oak Ancient Woodland;

 Quality of life reduced for neighbouring existing 
residents and new residents.

Landscaping
 Existing mature tree planting along Twelve Acre 

Drive to be retained. 
 Harmful impact on landscape;
 Insufficient landscaping mitigation resulting in 

intrusive views of the development from the Green 
Belt;

 Hedgerows should be retained and protected;

Connections
 Additional demand placed on existing public 

transport services;
 Provision of improved cycle and foot access to 

Radley Station is required;
 New bus routes required moving east and west;
 Cycle path provision to be improved;

Page 27



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

 Cycle lanes to be separate from pedestrian routes;
 Crossing at lodge hill is dangerous. An 

underpass/overpass is required to ensure safety for 
pedestrians and cyclists;

 Bridleway between Abingdon and Sunningwell to be 
retained;

 Current bus services inadequate;
 Cycle access to Oxford to be provided;
 Reduction of bus services on Radley Road from 3 to 

2 is not acceptable and has already been reduced;
 Bus stops required along Twelve Acre Drive;
 Rights of way to be retained or re-routed;
 No easy options to reach the Abingdon Business 

Park or Science Park;
 Concerns regarding feasibility of the proposed bus 

services and how they will be sustained when 
developer subsidy ceases;

 Secure cycle parking to be provided at all bus stops.

Application
 Errors and inconsistencies within Chapter 9 of the 

Environmental Statement and Archaeological Desk 
Based Assessment;

 Environmental Assessment is incorrect in its 
presentation on hydrology and flood risk;

 Inaccuracies within the LVIA;
 Contradiction on building heights and supporting 

documentation.

North 
Abingdon 
Local Planning 
Group

Summary comments:
 There should be a limit on the total number of 

dwellings and spaces and that this should not 
exceed 1,030;

 Roundabouts would be a better solution at existing 
and new junctions;

 An underpass would be better on Oxford Road;
 A direct footpath and cycle path to Radley Station 

required;
 Support the plan to increase lanes from Dunmore 

Road onto the Wootton Road roundabout;
 Clarification on building heights required; 
 The noise bund plus fence and planting to cover the 

full length of the site boundary with the A34;
 More information required about the area, numbers 

of dwellings and density for each of the 12 coloured 
blocks on the map; 

 Speed limits on Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre 
Drive to be reduced to 30mph to increase safety, 
facilitate access and produce a smoother overall 

Page 28



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

flow of traffic;
 The speed limit on Oxford Road, north of the 

Peachcroft roundabout, should be reduced; 
 Lack of bus laybys for buses travelling westwards;
 A 15m buffer zone for Blake’s Oak should be shown 

on the tree map and integrated into the plans for the 
Primary School; 

 Delivery and funding of south facing slip roads at 
Lodge Hill;

 Traffic implications if slip roads were not available;
 Do not think that the effect of adding 39% more 

vehicles (263) in the morning peak hour to the A34 
going North has been considered and do not think 
that the A34 has this capacity; 

 Difficulties of turning right are not confined to the 
rush hour hours and will get worse as a result of the 
development; 

 The local centre to be designed so it does not retain 
pollution;

 Air pollution to be continually monitored in central 
Abingdon and effective measures to reduce it are 
put in place; 

 The site to be designed and built to reduce noise 
pollution; 

 The community hub should support some provision 
for General Practitioners and a Church presence; 

 The loss of a clear Northern rural boundary to the 
town, development spreading up Lodge Hill and the 
loss of Green Belt will have a significant effect on 
the area;

 The Local Plan has not clearly demonstrated that 
there will be a need for over 1,000 houses per year 
in the Vale; 

 Concerned about the impacts of more traffic on the 
A34;

 Concerned that the South facing slip roads needed 
to cope with traffic from this and other nearby 
development will open the way for a sequence of 
other major developments around Lodge Hill (e.g. 
Park and Ride and lorry park);

 Electric vehicle charging points to be installed at any 
of the new houses and charging points to be 
provided at the local centre; 

 Support a car club that uses an electric vehicle;
 Electric/online indicators to be provided to show 

when buses will arrive; 
 Superfast broadband to be provided for all houses;
 A better footpath and cycleway to Radley Station 

should be developed.

Page 29



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

Sunningwell 
Environmental 
Group

Summary comments:
 Harmful impact on ecology and protection of the 

environment;
 Corridors and edge lands to be retained and 

enhanced;
 Retention of hedges, watercourses and woodland 

that have habitat value and species richness;
 Existing rights of way to be protected;
 No justification for footpath diversion;
 Noise and light pollution impacts;
 Existing Tilsley Park lighting is intrusive and harmful 

to Sunningwell;
 Pollution levels to be monitored;
 Maintenance and upkeep of open spaces to be 

confirmed.

Abingdon Area 
Archaeological 
and Historical 
Society

Summary comments:
 Field walking the site would be desirable as other 

nearby sites have proved to be rich in 
archaeological terms. 

 Further work required on the historic boundary 
between parishes of Radley and Sunningwell which 
passes through the site.

Local 
Churches 
(Sunningwell 
Parish Church, 
Christ Church
Northcourt 
Road and Long 
Furlong, 
Peachcroft 
Christian 
Centre, and 
Radley
Parish Church)

Summary comments:
 The churches would like to consult with the new 

residents to see what community activities are 
needed and use the new community centre to put 
on these events/groups. 

 The group would like the planning conditions to firm 
up that the churches would be able to use the 
community hub to host events and that there will be 
a dedicated office space. 

 As well as a large hall, there could also be a smaller 
room that would enable smaller sized community 
events/courses to happen. 

Councillor 
Emily Smith 
(Botley and 
Sunningwell)

Summary comments:
 Size of the development not supported by the Local 

Plan 2031 part 1. The increase in the number of 
homes will put additional strain on roads, health and 
education infrastructure;

 The traffic modelling assumes the Lodge Hill slip 
roads to be delivered. The traffic impacts without the 
slip roads would be unacceptable;

 Turing right onto Dunmore Road is already difficult;
 Impact of development on the AQMA;

Page 30



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

 The TA does not give enough attention to the impact 
of the development on surrounding villages, as more 
congestion may mean more traffic going through 
Sunningwell, Radley and Shippon;

 Concerns regarding safety of cyclists and 
pedestrians as a result of changes to the Wootton 
Road roundabout;

 Cycle routes from North Abingdon to Radley Station 
to be provided in accordance with Radley 
neighbourhood Plan;

 Speed limits on Dunmore Road to be reduced;
 Monitoring and enforcement of Travel Plan;
 Waste and water infrastructure and capacity to be 

able to accommodate development of this size;
 The design code could include more about 

renewable energy and sustainable building 
techniques 

 Concerns regarding proximity of homes closest to 
A34;

 More ambitious plans to provide housing that is truly 
affordable and greater proportion of social housing;

 More two bed homes required;
 The primary school should be two-form entry at the 

outset;
 Lack of secondary school places for new residents;
 Additional pressure on health services.

Councillor 
Debby Hallett 
(Botley and 
Sunningwell)

Summary comments:
 Delivery of south facing slip roads at Lodge Hill
 Traffic impacts without slip roads
 Number of units higher than stated within the Local 

Plan 2031 part 1
 Other Local Plan conditions for the site must be met

Town 
Councillor 
Andrew Todd 
(Dunmore 
Ward)

Summary comments:
 Increased congestion along Dunmore Road;
 Concerned that there is no access onto Oxford 

Road;
 Funding and delivery of Lodge Hill south facing slip 

roads.

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
3.1 None

3.2 Pre-application History
P16/V2637/PEJ - Erection of approximately 900 dwellings
Advice offered on:

Page 31

http://intranet.southandvale.net/jsp/packages/planning/VPAV_Summary.jsp?REF=P16/V2637/PEJ


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

 Principle of development
 Likely Section 106 requirements
 Content of Design Code
 Specification for primary school
 Cycle link provision
 Trees
 Relevant policies of newly adopted Local Plan

3.3 Screening/Scoping Opinion requests
Given the size of the proposal, it was agreed at an early stage that an 
Environmental Statement would be required so no formal Screening Opinion 
request was necessary.

P15/V2771/SCO – Scoping Opinion issued (23/12/2015)
The applicant submitted a formal Scoping Opinion request in late 2015 that 
informed the completed Environmental Statement accompanying this 
application.

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
4.1 The application is supported by an Environmental Statement that can be 

viewed on our website (www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk).  The Environmental 
Statement is considered comprehensive, with the main issues discussed where 
relevant in this report.  The Statement includes the following assessments::

1. Chapter One – Introduction
2. Chapter Two – Methodology
3. Chapter Three – The Existing Site
4. Chapter Four – Site Alternatives
5. Chapter Five – The Proposed Development
6. Chapter Six – Planning Policy
7. Chapter Seven – Socioeconomic
8. Chapter Eight – Transport
9. Chapter Nine – Air Quality
10.Chapter Ten – Noise
11.Chapter Eleven – Hydrology and Flood Risk
12.Chapter Twelve – Ecology
13.Chapter Thirteen – Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
14.Chapter Fourteen – Summary of Impacts
15.Non-Technical Summary
16.Appendices

5.0 MAIN ISSUES
The main issues in assessing this application are as follows:

 Principle of development
 Highways – Vehicular traffic
 Highways – Pedestrian, cycling and public transport
 Design and Layout
 Affordable Housing and Housing Mix
 Residential Amenity
 Landscape and Visual Impact

Page 32

http://intranet.southandvale.net/jsp/packages/planning/VPA_Summary.jsp?REF=P15/V2771/SCO
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

 Flood Risk and drainage
 Biodiversity
 Trees
 Air Quality
 Heritage
 Education
 Section 106 and financial contributions

5.1 Principle of Development
In accordance with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990, this application has been assessed in 
accordance with the provisions of the Development Plan.  The Development 
Plan for the Vale of White Horse consists of the Local Plan 2031 Part One 
and the Saved Policies of the Local Plan 2011.  The Local Plan 2031 Part 
Two remains at a relatively early stage of adoption and has only limited 
weight in officers’ assessment.  

5.2 The Local Plan 2031 Part One identifies the need to deliver 20,560 houses 
across the district in the plan period to meet housing needs.  Core Policy 4 
outlines the council’s spatial strategy for delivering this housing and includes 
a number of strategic allocations.  One of these allocations is this application 
site, known as “North Abingdon”.  This allocation is for approximately 800 
houses.  All allocations in the Local Plan 2031 Part One are subject to 
masterplanning.  Part Two of the Plan will seek to address the matter of 
Oxford’s unmet housing need. 

5.3 As part of the evidence base to support the Local Plan 2031, the council 
undertook a Green Belt review.  This review recommended the removal of this 
site from the Oxford Green Belt.  The council has done so to facilitate the 
delivery of housing.
  

5.4 Accompanying all of the strategic allocations in the Local Plan is a Site 
Development Template that outlines how the council expects the site to be 
developed to ensure a high quality, sustainable development.  The Site 
Development Template for this site is attached as Appendix Two for 
members’ information.  However, the most relevant requirements are listed 
below:

5.5  Prepare a Green Infrastructure strategy for the entirety of the site. This 
should link to Radley Park and the Sports Centre and link the Sport 
Centre Grounds to Lodge Hill along the line of the stream

 Include links from the east to the west of the site, from the site to the 
ring road and beyond into development to the south of the ring road. A 
pedestrian crossing will need to be provided along this route to connect 
development north and south of the ring road

 Create a sense of place around the River Stert
 Houses will need to front onto the ring road
 Affordable housing should be evenly distributed across the site
 Upgrade the sewer network

Page 33



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

 Contribute financially towards the south facing slips onto A34 at Lodge 
Hill

 Western portion of site to be accessed from Dunmore Road with 
access for eastern portion to be investigated

 Make financial contributions towards improved bus services in 
Abingdon

 Provide a new 1.5 form entry primary school on a 2.2 hectare site
 Contribute towards expanding secondary school capacity in Abingdon
 Investigate potential noise and air pollution impacts from the A34, 

A4183, Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive
 Limit development to those parts of the site identified in the Landscape

          Capacity Study (2014) and east of Oxford Road LVIA as being suitable   
          For development

 Retain existing trees and hedgerows and plant additional trees along 
the A34, the ring road and along Twelve Acre Drive

 Ensure that any development within the Oxford Green Belt only 
consists of compatible uses

 Incorporate an appropriate buffer along either side of the River Stert 
into the overall development.

5.6 The allocation of the site for residential development in the recently adopted 
Local Plan Part One establishes the principle of the proposed development.  
Officers are satisfied, subject to consideration of the above detailed points, 
that the principle of this development is acceptable.  All allocations within the 
Local Plan Part One are “subject to masterplanning”.  As explained in this 
report, the applicant has undertaken a detailed masterplanning exercise that 
has led to this proposal to increase the overall number of houses from the 800 
allocated to the 950 now proposed.  This is acceptable in principle, subject to 
detailed assessment of the impacts of this proposal, which are considered in 
later sections of this report.

5.7 Highways – Vehicular traffic
The impact of this proposal on the local road network has been one of the key 
concerns that has led to neighbours objecting to this application.  The main 
concerns raised are:

 Unacceptable increases in traffic on A34 and local roads, which are 
already at capacity

 Uncertainty over funding of Lodge Hill slips
 Minimal improvements to other local roads
 Turning onto Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive from the south is 

already difficult – junction improvements needed
 Accuracy of traffic modelling work in Transport Assessment
 Location and design of new junctions onto Dunmore Road

The NPPF (Paragraph 32) requires plans and decisions to take account of 
whether:

 the opportunities for sustainable transport modes have been taken up
           depending on the nature and location of the site, to reduce the need for  
          major transport infrastructure;

Page 34



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

 safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all people; and
 improvements can be undertaken within the transport network that            

effectively limit the significant impacts of the development.

Paragraph 32 goes on to state: “Development should only be prevented or 
refused on transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of 
development are severe”.

5.8 Saved Policy DC5 of the Local Plan 2011 requires safe access for 
developments and that the surrounding road network can accommodate the 
traffic arising from the development safely.  Core Policy 7 requires 
developments to make in-kind or financial contributions to a wide range of 
supporting infrastructure, in accordance with the council’s Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan.

5.9 How to accommodate the proposed housing on this site without causing 
significant cumulative harm to highway safety has been a central point of 
discussion throughout the preparation of the Local Plan 2031 Part One and 
the assessment of this application.  

5.10 The applicant has supported the application with a comprehensive Transport 
Assessment to allow officers to understand the existing traffic situation in the 
local and wider area, the likely impact of this proposal and the mitigation 
necessary to avoid undue harm occurring to highway safety.  A detailed 
explanation of the Highway Modelling work undertaken is attached as 
Appendix Three.  OCC has reviewed the methodology and findings of the 
Transport Assessment and are satisfied with the conclusions.

5.11 The modelling shows it is anticipated that two junctions will experience an 
increase in traffic that will be considered so severe as to warrant further 
investigation and potential mitigation:

 Oxford Road/ Twelve Acre Drive/ Dunmore Road – Roundabout
 Dunmore Road / Boulter Drive – Priority ‘T’-Junction

5.12 The Oxford Road roundabout will experience an increase in traffic regardless 
of the impact of this development through the opening of Lodge Hill sips.  
However, this proposal will also push the level of traffic movements through 
this junction over an acceptable level, triggering the need for mitigation.

5.13 Mitigation – Lodge Hill slip roads
It is important to note that all of the modelling work assumes that the Lodge 
Hill slip roads are delivered at an early stage of the build programme of this 
site.  No detailed modelling work has been provided that shows how the local 
road network would be affected in the “do something” scenario without Lodge 
Hill slip roads.  This approach has been agreed with both the Vale of White 
Horse and OCC given the paramount importance of the slip roads in 
delivering the proposed housing allocations in the “Abingdon and Oxford 
fringe” sub-area of the Local Plan.  However, it is important to note that OCC 
estimate that only 250 houses across the four allocations in the area can be 
occupied before “severe” residual cumulative harm occurs.

Page 35



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

5.14 As outlined at Para 5.5, the Site Development Template expects this 
development, alongside those developing the “North West Abingdon”, “South 
Kennington” and “North West Radley” allocations, to make a proportionate 
Section 106 contribution to delivering the Lodge Hill slip roads.  However, it 
has never been anticipated that new development would pay for the total cost 
of the project, as it is not just new residents that will benefit from it.

5.15 Officers are mindful that, even if funding is secured, there remains some 
outstanding elements to resolve before OCC can deliver the slip roads, 
including agreeing a detailed design with Highways England, who are the 
body responsible for maintaining and improving the A34 as it is part of the 
national strategic road network.  Therefore, despite officers’ confidence that 
the slip roads will be funded and delivered as planned, there is a need to 
retain control over the rate at which houses are built and occupied on this site.  
A Grampian condition attached to any permission can achieve this by allowing 
only for 150 houses to be occupied on the site prior to final confirmation of 
central government funding for the slips, and not more than 400 houses to be 
occupied on the site prior to OCC signing a contract with their preferred 
delivery partner for the slip roads.  

5.16 The applicant has confirmed that they have identified a parcel of land to the 
west of the proposed access road to the Local Centre and primary school.  
This parcel will deliver approximately 150 units and represent the first phase 
of this development.  Delivering this parcel will help forward fund the 
immediate site infrastructure, including the new access onto Dunmore Road, 
foul sewer upgrades, utility connections and association infrastructure up to 
the boundary with the primary school site.  The condition has been agreed 
with the applicant, who has indicated they are keen to market the site as soon 
as possible to assist in the early delivery of housing on this strategic site.

5.17 Mitigation – Oxford Road/Dunmore Road/Twelve Acre Drive roundabout
As outlined above, the applicant’s Transport Assessment confirms that this 
roundabout will be above capacity at peak times relatively early in the build 
programme for this site.  This is in part due to the additional movements 
through this junction to access Lodge Hill slips from existing as well as new 
residents.  

5.18 The applicant proposes a priority left-hand turn lane for those travelling north 
from Dunmore Road.  This requires part of the land within the applicant’s 
ownership.  This will minimise delays for north-bound traffic and, crucially, 
remove traffic from the remaining arms of the roundabout where the delays 
would be most keenly felt.  The applicants also propose to wider the “flares” 
leading into the roundabout to allow for additional approach lanes which will 
also increase capacity and reduce waiting times.  Associated improvements 
include additional road markings and kerb realignment to reduce entry 
speeds.

5.19 The applicant has re-run the junction modelling for this roundabout in the 
2020, 2024 and 2028 “Do Something” assessment years, including the 

Page 36



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

assumed improvements this mitigation will offer, and can demonstrate that the 
roundabout will operate within capacity.  The applicant intends to provide this 
mitigation in full as part of the Section 278 agreement with OCC for off-site 
highway works.  OCC have confirmed that they support the proposed 
mitigation offered for this roundabout. 

5.20 Mitigation – Wootton Road/Dunmore Road/Copenhagen Drive roundabout
The Transport Assessment accompanying the application demonstrates that 
the impact of this scheme on the capacity of the junction is less than the 5% 
and therefore does not warrant further investigation.  However, the applicant 
has been mindful of the strong concern locally to how this junction operates, 
due to the presence of single lane approaches and a narrowed circulatory 
carriageway.  These were installed in 2014 alongside improved off-
carriageway cycling infrastructure and a controlled Toucan crossing to 
improve cycling safety.

5.21 The applicants contend that the associated delays in congestion and queuing 
for vehicular traffic has created a more dangerous on-carriageway experience 
for cycling that could be considered to outweigh the off-carriageway safety 
benefits the works have offered.  Therefore, the applicant proposes kerb re-
alignments to reduce vehicle speeds entering and on the roundabout and to 
widen entry points to two lanes to ease queuing times whilst retaining the 
principle of the 2014 OCC improvements.

5.22 Again, the applicant intends to fully provide the proposed mitigation through 
the Section 278 process.  However, it is important to note that further or 
alternative mitigation may be necessary for this roundabout as it lies adjacent 
to the North West Abingdon allocation, which is currently, in part, subject to 
an application for up to 200 dwellings (Our Ref: P17/V1336/O).  Further work 
on this matter is required.  Nonetheless, at the time of writing, officers are 
satisfied these improvements should be supported as part of the 
recommendation to approve this application.

5.23 Other proposed mitigation
As well as the above mitigation, the applicants propose the following 
improvements on local roads, again all to be fully delivered by the applicant 
under a Section 278 agreement:

 Revised speed limit on Oxford Road, north of the roundabout, to 
reduce vehicular speeds approaching Abingdon

 Various bus, cycle and pedestrian improvements (see next section).

5.24 Assessment
Officers recognise the level of opposition to this scheme locally on traffic 
generation grounds.  Officers are also fully aware of the difficulties that many 
existing residents face commuting from the northern parts of Abingdon each 
day, in particular those who need to turn right onto Dunmore Road or Twelve 
Acre Drive.  It is noteworthy that the additional pedestrian crossings across 
these roads will create more “gaps” in the traffic for those turning right, while 

Page 37



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

the introduction of the south facing slip roads at Lodge Hill will also give rise 
to a redistribution of background traffic, further easing the ability to exit 
existing side roads.  This includes the Dunmore Road/Boulter Drive junction 
referenced above.

5.25 However, officers are satisfied that, subject to the delivery of the mitigation 
above, and the associated improvements to public transport, pedestrian and 
cycle links summarised in the next section, overall this development will not 
cause “severe” residual cumulative impacts in transport terms.  This is the test 
that the NPPF requires officers to apply and the applicants have 
demonstrated that the harm this proposal will cause cannot reasonably be 
described as severe.

5.26 On site vehicular traffic considerations - Accesses, visibility splays, internal 
roads and parking
The Transport Assessment confirms that, in accordance with the Site 
Development Template, vehicular access will be taken from Dunmore Road 
and Twelve Acre Drive, with no vehicular access onto Oxford Road as this 
arrangement would interrupt traffic flows on this important arterial route.  

5.27 The applicant has considered the type of access that would be appropriate 
onto Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive.  Whilst officers acknowledge that 
many local residents would prefer roundabouts linking the new site access 
with existing junctions on the southern side of these roads (such as Boulter 
Drive), it is important to note that these roads are primarily relief roads for 
Abingdon town centre.  Roundabouts are only found on principal road 
corridors such as Oxford Road and Wootton Road. 
 

5.28 Given the above, and the results of the modelling of trip generation, the 
applicant contends that priority “T”-junctions are the most appropriate form of 
vehicular access for the site, similar to those seen on the southern side of 
Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive.  Due to the site being split into three 
distinct parcels of land, either side of Oxford Road, four accesses are 
proposed, of which three include “ghost island” right-turn lanes.  Four 
accesses for this level of housing is means that small numbers of dwellings 
would be served by each access, relative to the situation to the south, and 
there are no concerns over the capacity of each junction.
  

5.29 The applicant confirms that the accesses are deliverable within the applicant’s 
land or the public highway.  The precise location of the access points have 
been designed with visibility in mind, with all four accesses providing visibility 
splays to standard given the 40MPH speed limit.  In consultation, OCC have 
recorded no objections to the proposed access points.

5.30 Within the site, a variety of street types are proposed to provide a hierarchy of 
roads to reflect the purpose of each part of the site.  Gateway streets will link 
the three parcels and encourage the most direct route to the Local Centre, 
whilst secondary streets, private drives and mews will serve the quieter 
residential areas.

Page 38



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

5.31 The Transport Assessment confirms that vehicular parking will be provided in 
line with OCC standards.

5.32 Highways – Pedestrians, cyclists and public transport
Core Policy 33 of the Local Plan 2031 seeks to promote sustainable transport 
and accessibility, whilst Core Policy 35 promotes public transport, cycling and 
walking.  Core Policy 35 is particularly relevant to this proposal as it:

 Supports measures that enable a modal shift to public transport, 
cycling and walking in the district

 Ensures new development will be located close to existing public 
transport routes that can be strengthened to meet new demands

 Encourage walking as the preferred means of transport, within the 
development and to nearby facilities

 Ensures new development will encourage and enable cycling, both 
within the site and links to nearby services, employment, schools etc.

 Supports the provision of new cycling routes
 Requires major developments to be supported by Travel Plans
 Provides adequate parking.

More specifically for this application, the Site Development Template 
highlights the need for good pedestrian and cycle links and the expectation 
that this development will make financial contributions to local bus services.  
Meeting these requirements has been an important part of negotiations 
between the applicant and officers during the pre-application and application 
stages.  The applicant offers the following improvements to enable new 
residents to travel sustainably:   

 Bus laybys with cycle parking on Oxford Road;
 Footway / Cycleway improvements on Oxford Road;
 Bus laybys / bus cage markings on Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre 

Drive;
 Toucan crossings on Dunmore Road, Oxford Road and Twelve Acre 

Drive;
 Hardsurfacing of foot / cycle path south of Twelve Acre Drive to Carse 

Close;
 Link to Tilsley Park, to the west of the bridleway;
 Pegasus crossing on Dunmore Road; and
 New pedestrian refuges on Dunmore Road

5.33 Encouraging walking and cycling has been a central theme in designing the 
different types of streets within the development.  The Gateway, Primary and 
Primary Green streets will include dedicated cycleways and footways on both 
sides, separate from the main carriageway.  Lesser streets will have shared 
surfaces to encourage lower vehicle speeds.

5.34 Across the site, a full network of these dedicated cycleways and footways will 
link the key facilities of the site, reducing the need to travel by car.  A shared 
footway/cycleway will be provided to the immediate north of Dunmore Road 
and Twelve Acre Drive, provided an entirely off-carriageway link to the Local 
Centre, the primary school and Tilsley Park.  

Page 39



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

5.35 Looking outside the confines of the site, pedestrian and cycle access is 
offered to Oxford Road to link with the regular bus services linking Abingdon 
to Oxford.  This includes a Toucan crossing linking the central and eastern 
parcels of this site.  The existing shared foot/cycleway on the eastern side of 
Oxford Road would be widened from the Oxford Road roundabout to the new 
Toucan crossing.  A new foot/cycle way would run north from the crossing 
towards Lodge Hill garage.  Officers consider it is vital to link the site for 
pedestrians and cyclists to the premium bus services to Oxford that run along 
the Oxford Road.  Additional, secure, cycle parking at existing bus stops on 
Oxford Road will be provided and new bus stops close to the Toucan crossing 
will be provided north of the roundabout.

5.36 In terms of linking the site to Abingdon, a number of signalised and 
unsignalised crossings are proposed, serving all three parcels.   These 
include a Pegasus crossing, which caters for horse riders as well as 
pedestrians and cyclists, linking to the existing bridle way.  These crossings 
are located close to existing pedestrian and cycle links on the southern side of 
Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive to allow easy access to the existing 
facilities of the town.  Tilsley Park, Long Furlong Primary School and Long 
Furlong Medical Centre are all within a reasonable walking distance from any 
part of the application site, whilst a wider range of facilities, including 
Abingdon and Witney College are within a 10 minute cycle ride.  

5.37 Cycle link to Radley train station
Both in their emerging Neighbourhood Plan and their consultation response to 
this application, Radley Parish Council reference their desire for a new cycle 
path to link this site and the North West Radley allocation to Radley train 
station.  Officers agree with this general approach, particularly as the only 
current cycle link runs to the south of Twelve Acre Drive and this requires a 
number of road crossings for cyclists that will be unacceptable to many 
commuters.  It is also not ideal for the more casual cyclist as it is sub-
standard in width at many points along Twelve Acre Drive.

5.38 However, the Parish Council’s preferred route for the new cycle path, 
although logical, requires crossing private land across Peachcroft Farm, 
which is owned by Radley College.  Radley College has confirmed they are 
unable to offer up this land for a cycle path as it will conflict with the operation 
of the farm itself.  Whilst Radley Parish Council have identified this as a 
preferred route, the application proposes a new cycle link along the northern 
side of Twelve Acre Drive and therefore it is this proposal which has to be 
considered as part of determining this application.  The planning process 
cannot compel third party land owners to provide their land for new 
infrastructure.

5.39 Accordingly, officers at the Vale and OCC have assessed the solution of a 
new cycle link from the eastern parcel of the site along the northern side of 
Twelve Acre Drive either within the existing highway verge or on land to the 
immediate north of the highway boundary.  This will link directly to the existing 
cycle path on Radley Road without the need for crossing existing roads 

Page 40



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

multiple times.  To accompany this, the applicant’s will make a Section 106 
financial contribution to additional secure cycle parking at Radley Station to 
encourage commuters to travel sustainable to the station, which allows easy 
onward trips to Oxford, Didcot, Reading and London.

5.40 Bus Services
Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive are currently not served by any bus 
services.  However, officers of the Vale and OCC, the applicant and the 
Oxford Bus Company have been in discussions over an extension to the 
existing “35” bus service.  This operates between Oxford and Abingdon via 
the Radley Road.  Officers consider there is potential to extend this service to 
loop through Abingdon town centre, along Wootton Road and then eastwards 
past this site.  
  

5.41 The applicant recognises that this bus would offer a service not currently 
offered by the primary bus routes along Oxford Road.  It would also serve the 
Northwest Abingdon, Northwest Radley and South Kennington housing 
allocations and officers envisage these developments, as well as this one, will 
make proportionate financial contributions to “pump-prime” the service until 
such time as sufficient housing is occupied to make the service commercially 
viable.  The applicant here will also provide new bus stops on Dunmore Road 
and Twelve Acre Drive to serve the new route.  Officers welcome this new 
route, which is in response to the feedback received from local people at the 
pre-application stage.

5.42 Conclusion
Overall, officers are satisfied that this proposal meets the requirements of the 
Local Plan in terms of encouraging a modal shift to sustainable method of 
transport.  All the facilities within the site are easily accessible by foot or cycle, 
as are many outside it in the existing northern part of town.  A new cycle link 
to access Radley Station will be provided.  Furthermore, access to existing 
bus services will be improved and a new extension to the 35 bus route will be 
secured. 

5.43 Design and Layout
A number of Local Plan policies and guidelines within the adopted Design 
Guide seek to ensure high quality developments and to protect the amenities 
of neighbouring properties (Core Policies 37 and 38 and Saved Policies DC6 
and DC9.).  The Local Plan requires all allocations to adhere to the following 
Urban Design principles:

 Design should enable a high degree of integration and connectivity 
between new and existing communities

 Be at a density appropriate for the location
 Make a positive contribution towards local character and 

distinctiveness

5.44 The Site Development Template for the North Abingdon allocation contains 
the following main urban design principles:

 Prepare a Green Infrastructure strategy for the entirety of the site
 Include links across the site, into the existing relief roads and into the 

Page 41



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

development opposite
 Adopt a permeable, perimeter block layout within the site to optimise 

connectivity
 Create a sense of place around the River Stert
 Front houses onto the existing roads
 Provide a 1.5 form entry primary school on a 2.22 hectare site
 Retain existing trees and hedgerows, plant additional trees along the 

A34, ring road and Twelve Acre Drive
 Minimise visual impact of the development on the Green Belt
 Ensure development within the Green Belt consists of compatible uses

5.45 The application has been supported by a Design and Access Statement that 
includes a Design Code, which officers sought from an early stage of the pre-
application negotiations.  Given the way the site easily divides into three 
parcels, officers considered it quite likely that multiple house builders will 
ultimately build the site out.  The purpose of the Design Code is to specify, in 
great detail, every aspect of how the final development will look so that, when 
reserved matters applications come in for each phase of the estate, a high 
level of consistency across the site will be secured.  This is important in 
ensuring that the development makes a positive contribution to local character 
and is distinct in its own right.  The Design Code is an approved document 
listed in condition 1 of the recommendation and officers are satisfied that the 
council will retain a good level of control over the reserved matters 
applications.

5.46 Framework, Layout and Density
To minimise the impact on the Green Belt, the applicants propose to retain 
and enhance woodland planting, and leave the uppermost slopes of the site 
free from housing.  The location of the school site allows an offset from the 
Ancient Woodland to the north.  This will help to minimise views of the 
development from Lodge Hill, Radley Park and Peachcroft Farm.  The sports 
pitches are provided within the retained part of the Green Belt, a compatible 
use as required by the Development Template.

5.47 Green links are integrated into the site around the existing public rights of way 
and footpath corridors, such as the footpath leading across the A34 towards 
Sunningwell.  Substantial tree planting is provided along the site boundary 
with the A34, including an earth bund.  On the lower parts of the site, a 
network of ponds and swales are proposed that will both provide surface 
water attenuation and wildlife corridors.  These link with existing 
watercourses, hedgerows and woodlands to provide the basis of a green 
infrastructure strategy for the site.  

5.48 From this framework, the layout of the scheme has been developed.  The 
western parcel is entirely housing, whilst the easternmost parcel provides 
housing and the sports facilities.  The central part of the site is perhaps the 
most crucial, as it provides all of the community facilities and the school.  

5.49 The main accesses to the site have already been discussed, one for the 
western parcel, one for the central parcel and two for the eastern parcel.  

Page 42



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

Continuous vehicular access along a central spine road through the western 
and central parcels, whilst the Toucan crossing on Oxford Road allows 
pedestrian and cycle access across the entirety of the site.  From the central 
spine road leads a number of secondary and tertiary streets that allow the 
creation of the perimeter block structure required by the Local Plan.  This 
hierarchy of streets is a fundamental design principle with the Design Guide.  
The Design Code takes this further by specifying the widths of each street, 
the foot and cycle provision and the planting requirements.  Officers consider 
ensuring this consistency across the site essential to delivering the overall 
appearance of the estate.

5.50 The layout allows for housing fronting onto Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre 
Drive.  The treatment of the central and eastern parcels are particularly 
important in this regard and these are discussed later in the report.  

5.51 Officers strongly support positioning the Local Centre at the heart of the site, 
providing a number of complementary facilities together in close proximity.  
This includes the new school that will be positioned on the highest part of the 
site, but will be cut into the slope to limit its visual prominence.

5.52 The applicant proposes a varied approach to density across the site.  On the 
rural edges, closest to the Green Belt, in the eastern parcel, density will not 
exceed 30 dwellings to the hectare.  Similarly, the density in the western 
parcel will be between 25-35 dwellings to the hectare.  Only in the central 
parcel of the site, closest to the Local Centre, will density exceed 35 dwellings 
to the hectare, to a maximum of 40.  The Local Plan requires a net density of 
at least 30 dwellings to the hectare, subject to character considerations.  
Officers are supportive of the approach to density proposed.  Clearly, how 
that density is articulated is important, and this will come through the more 
detailed applications at a later stage.

5.53 Saved Policy H23 of the Local Plan 2011 requires new housing developments 
to provide public open space for outdoor play and informal recreation.  The 
policy indicates that at least 15% of the residential area should be laid out as 
public open space.  The framework plans submitted in support of the 
application show a Neighbourhood Equipped Area for Play (NEAP) close to 
the school and two Local Equipped Areas for Play (LEAP).  There are 
informal areas of play incorporated into the landscape buffers and green 
corridors around the site.  The sports pitch provision is also an important part 
of the open space strategy for the site.  Officers are satisfied that a good 
amount of open space, and a good range of facilities, will be provided in line 
with the requirements of Policy H23.

5.54 Officers are satisfied that the submitted parameter plans demonstrate a high 
quality layout can be achieved on this site, allowing the 900 dwellings and 
local centre to be provided, whilst still meeting the requirements of the 
Development Site Template.

5.55 Appearance, scale and landscaping
Although matters of appearance and scale are reserved matters (alongside 
the layout and landscaping), officers have worked with the applicant to 

Page 43



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

produce a comprehensive approach to these aspects of the scheme, 
enshrined within the Design Code.  The Design Code includes a “Regulatory 
Plan” that sets the placemaking elements for the entire scheme, including:

 The different streets making up the road network – from Gateway 
streets, through primary and secondary streets onto mews and private 
drive

 The “edges” of the development
 Where the “special places” will be located
 Where “key buildings” will be located

5.56 In terms of scale, this follows a similar approach to density, in that the tallest 
buildings will be located at the more densely developed parts of the site, 
including the local centre.  Here, buildings up to three storeys in height are 
proposed, with the exception of the school, which is to be cut into the slope at 
the highest part of the site at a maximum height of 10 metres.  On the edges 
of the site building heights are reduced to 10 metres (2-storey).  This is a 
sensitive response to the surrounding landscape.  Officers are comfortable 
with the approach taken in respect of the scale of the development.  The 
Design Code identifies a number of locations where “key buildings” will be 
placed, to aid legibility and add character to the development.  

5.57 The Local Centre is one of the “special places” within the development and is 
a good example of the level of detail that the Design Code contains.  The 
Design Code starts by setting out a number of “mandatory” landscape and 
built form principles for this area.  These include using taller 2 ½ - 3 storey 
buildings to define a public square, placing key buildings like the school in 
locations where they act as local landmarks, landscaping the square to 
encourage pedestrian priority and providing a green corridor to link the Local 
Centre into the NEAP to the north.

5.58 The Design Code goes on to include specifications for the Local Centre that 
include the species of street trees, the unit types appropriate for the use in the 
area, the surfacing materials, boundary treatments, car parking, street 
furniture and lighting.

5.59 The remaining “Special Places” are “St Helens Park” which is centrally 
located in the eastern parcel of the site and “Lodge Hill Park” which is the 
heart of the western parcel of the site.  Again, the Design Code specifies in 
detail the various elements of these areas that will combine to give them a 
distinctive character.

5.60 A similarly detailed approach is taken to the “edges” of the development, with 
the use of mandatory landscape and built form principles designed to give 
these parts of the site their own distinctive character.  This includes the 
“Greenway” edge that outlines the important interface between Dunmore 
Road and the site.  This outlines how housing will front onto, but be set back 
from Dunmore Road.  Along this edge, there will be an increase in height to 
up to 3 storeys (12 metres) to provide a stronger presence on Dunmore Road 
than is often seen in the existing estate to the south.  Differing materials (buff 
brick) and boundary treatments (metal railings and brick walls) will give a 

Page 44



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

unique character to this part of the site.  Between Dunmore Road and this 
housing is a landscape corridor that includes swales and ponds as part of the 
SuDS attenuation and an off-road cycleway that links to the Local Centre and 
key amenities.  

5.61 The other “edges” are the “western” edge, which is the part of the site facing 
the A34, where extensive planting proposals are necessary to help soften the 
appearance of the noise attenuation bund.  Accordingly, the Design Code 
proposes a lower density along this edge with a more loose-knit layout and 
traditional materials and boundary treatments.  The “woodland” edge and 
“countryside” edge also react to their surroundings, providing low-key 
development and access to green corridors appropriate to the sensitive 
nature of these areas.

5.62 The Design Code then moves onto the “streets” of the development, which 
are discussed above at Para 5.38.  Again, each street is designed to have its 
own character, with the type of dwelling on it, the width of the carriageway, 
the surfacing materials and the landscaping all specified.  Whilst the 
“gateway” street is over 20 metres wide, the “private lane” will be less than 15 
metres, reflecting their purpose and which mode of transport is dominant.  

5.63 The public open space areas and the sports pitch area are also treated in a 
similarly detailed way, with surfacing materials and the street furniture a 
particular focus in giving each area its own distinct character.

5.64 The above represents a relatively high-level summary of the comprehensive 
detail that the Design Code includes when it considers the appearance, scale 
and landscaping of this proposal.  Council officers, including the Urban 
Design Officer and the Landscape Architect, have offered regular feedback on 
the Design Code.  Officers are satisfied that the Design Code offers a sound 
basis for delivering a high quality development across the site that will have 
its own distinctive character.  Condition 8 of the recommendation will tie future 
reserved matters applications into the Design Code and ensure a consistency 
of approach.  Officer are satisfied this proposal meets the requirements of the 
Development Site Template.

5.65 Affordable Housing and Housing Mix
In line with Core Policy 24 of the Local Plan 2031 Part One, the council will 
seek 35% of the units as affordable housing.  For 950 units on this site this 
will result in the provision of 332.5 units.  This will be provided through 332 
units on the site, on a 75% rent, 25% shared ownership basis and a 
commuted sum equivalent to 0.5 of a unit. 

5.66 Core Policy 22 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part One requires a mix of 
dwelling sizes to be provided on new housing schemes in line with the most 
recent evidence.  Currently, the Oxfordshire Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment 2014 (SHMA) is the most recent assessment of housing and 
estimates the open market dwelling requirement by number of bedrooms 
(2011 to 2031) for the District that will be required.  The applicant has 
proposed a different mix and the two are compared below:

Page 45



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4+ bed Total
SHMA % 5.9% 21.7% 42.6% 29.8% 100%
Market 2.5% 12.5% 47.5% 37.5% 100%
Retirement 40% 60% 0% 0% 100%
Combined 
market and 
retirement

5.5% 16.3% 43.7% 34.5% 100%

5.67 Radley Parish Council object to the housing mix based on survey data they 
have compiled as part of their emerging Neighbourhood Plan.  However, this 
site does not fall within the designated area of that Neighbourhood Plan and 
the Radley Neighbourhood Plan does not currently carry any weight.  Officers 
consider that the SHMA remains the appropriate guide for housing mix.

5.68 As an aside, the applicant has confirmed that the affordable mix will meet the 
suggested mix in the SHMA for social housing and this will be enshrined in 
the Section 106 agreement accompanying any planning permission for this 
site.

5.69 Core Policy 26 of the Local Plan adopts a permissive approach to the 
provision of specialist accommodation for the elderly within the allocated 
sites.  Officers are satisfied that the 50 retirement dwellings should be 
included in the overall consideration of market housing mix.  Accordingly, 
officers consider that the relatively small deviations in the proposed mix for 
one bedroom units (- 0.4% or 2.5 units) and three bedroom units (+1.1% or 7 
units) are not sufficient to warrant serious objection.  However, given the 
scale of the deviation in respect of two bedroom units (-5.4% or 33 units) and 
4+ bedroom units (+4.7% or 29 units), officers consider that the applicant’s 
justification requires some scrutiny.

5.70 Firstly, it is important to note that the SHMA figures summarised above are 
“estimates” and Para 7.35 of the SHMA states, “…we do not strongly believe 
that such prescriptive figures should be included in the plan making process 
and that the “market” is to some degree a better judge of what is the most 
appropriate profile of homes to deliver at any point in time.”

5.71 Through the masterplanning process, the applicants have been able to 
demonstrate that 900 dwellings can be achieved on this site and this level of 
development is actually necessary to achieve a net density of 30 dwellings to 
the hectare in line with the Local Plan.  The applicant then applied the SHMA 
mix for market and affordable housing to a more detailed layout (using 
standard house sizes) and found that this gave a “site coverage” of around 
13,300 square foot per acre.  The applicant has advised that this is an 
exceptionally low site coverage, with most house builders requiring at least 
15,000 square foot per acre.  The options for increasing site coverage to at 
least 15,000 square foot per acre were to either increase unit numbers further 
(above 900 units), or to introduce some larger units.  The applicant feels the 
latter was preferable, helping to facilitate a density appropriate to the edge of 
town location.  In essence, the applicant’s position is that a SHMA compliant 

Page 46



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

mix for the 900 dwellings would result in an inefficient use of land that would 
be commercially unattractive.

5.72 This argument was presented to the council at pre-application stage and 
negotiations have resulted in the introduction of the 50 retirement buildings.  
As well as being in accordance with the Local Plan, this has allowed some of 
the smaller “general” housing to be released to the market and reduce the 
deviation from the SHMA. 

5.73 It is noted that limited evidence has been provided to support the notion that 
house builders require site coverage of 15,000 square foot per acre.  Nor is 
the concept of site coverage enshrined in local or national planning policy.  

5.74 Officers also note that the Monitoring and Implementation Framework for 
Core Policy 22 of the Local Plan sets the following target, “To ensure the 
cumulative delivery of planning permissions for housing developments 
provides an average density that accords with the policy.”  The applicant 
contends that, as this application represents the first scheme looking to 
develop one of the allocations within the Oxford Fringe and Abingdon sub-
area, there is opportunity to address the deviation proposed here across 
future applications to ensure the mix of housing delivered in the area overall 
accords with the SHMA.  Whilst officers recognise this could be the case, 
limited weight is attached to this argument.

5.75 However, on balance, officers do not consider that the market housing mix 
proposed warrants serious objection.  This is primarily due to the fact that the 
SHMA mix is clearly presented as an estimate, not a precise calculation to be 
applied slavishly in all circumstances.  Furthermore, given this development 
will provide over 600 market houses, the deviation in terms of unit numbers is 
relatively minor.  The harm that can be attached to the proposed housing mix 
in the planning balance does not, in officers’ opinion, outweigh the many 
benefits of bringing forward this allocated site for development.  

5.76 Residential Amenity
Saved Policy DC9 of the Local Plan 2011 confirms that development will not 
be permitted if it would unacceptably harm the amenities of neighbouring 
properties in terms of loss of privacy, daylight, sunlight or outlook, or through 
noise disturbance.  

5.77 Layout, scale and appearance are all reserved matters and therefore at this 
stage, the detailed impacts of the proposed dwellings on existing 
neighbouring properties cannot be assessed.  However, the indicative 
masterplan shows that across the site back to back and back to side 
distances between houses accord with the recommendations of the Design 
Guide (21 and 12 metres respectively).  It will be for the detailed reserved 
matters applications to maintain these relationships.  Similarly, reserved 
matters applications will need to provide garden sizes in line with the Design 
Guide (1-bed: 35 square metres, 2-bed: 50 square metres, 3+bed: 100 square 
metres)

Page 47



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

5.78 There are no residential properties on the northern side of Dunmore Road or 
Twelve Acre Drive close enough to the site to be materially affected by the 
proposals.  Distances to properties on the southern side of these roads are 
well in excess of at least 40 metres.  There are no concerns the proposals, 
even allowing for the increased land levels, will have a significant impact on 
the privacy, sunlight, daylight or outlook experienced by these properties.

5.79 Officers have received some objections from neighbours who are concerned 
that the position of the proposed accesses and pedestrian crossings will 
cause additional disturbance to them, through idling traffic or car headlights.  
Officers acknowledge these concerns but the applicant has provided evidence 
that car headlights will not shine into people’s gardens from the proposed 
access points.  Furthermore, it would be difficult to demonstrate material harm 
to resident amenity from idling traffic.  The crossings will be signal controlled 
and so their usage will vary throughout the day.  Whilst some properties will 
experience changes as a result of the new access points , it is not considered 
harmful.

5.80 Saved Policy DC10 confirms that development will not be permitted if it is 
likely to be adversely affected by existing sources of noise or vibration.  The 
western parcel of this site is going to be affected by traffic noise from the A34, 
particularly given the comparatively similar land levels between the road and 
the site.  Traffic noise from Dunmore Road. Oxford Road and Twelve Acre 
Drive is also a constraint for the southern parts of the middle and eastern 
parcel.  The application is supported by a full Noise Assessment, which has 
monitored the likely noise levels within the site from a number of different 
locations, including the above.

5.81 British Standard 8233 (2014) “Guidance on sound insulation and noise 
reduction for buildings” recommends that internal noise levels in housing or 
school classrooms should be no more than 35 decibels (db).  The noise 
assessment records noise levels well in excess of this given the traffic using 
the roads surrounding the site.  Those houses facing the A34 and Dunmore 
Road would experience noise in excess of 60 db.  However, bespoke glazing 
for windows facing these road will reduce internal noise levels to less than 
35db, during daytime and night-time.

5.82 These results assume the windows are closed, which is not realistic, so the 
applicant have proposed further mitigation to allow residents to be able to 
open their windows.  The most noteworthy proposal is the introduction of a 
five metre high barrier fronting the A34, taking the form of a landscaped bund 
and acoustic fence.  The Noise Assessment estimates this will reduce noise 
levels from over 60db to 55db (daytime) or 52db (night-time).  This, combined 
with the bespoke glazing, will reduce internal noise levels to 22db (daytime) or 
19db (night-time).  The applicant proposes the use of air brick ventilation 
and/or trickle vents for the bespoke glazing units for properties fronting the 
A34, Dunmore Road, Oxford Road and Twelve Acre Drive.  These will help 
ventilate the rooms when the windows are closed, reducing the need to open 
them for ventilation purposes.

Page 48



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

5.83 In terms of noise experienced in gardens, the applicant confirms that the 
bunding onto the A34, the setback from Dunmore Road, Oxford Road and 
Twelve Acre, and the intervening swales, will ensure a noise environment 
close to the recommended 55db.  The manner in which houses face the roads 
and the positioning of garages and boundary walls will work to reduce the 
impact on the private rear gardens behind.  Amended plans have also 
introduced a new acoustic fence to the rear of the school playing field to 
maintain an external noise level below 50db.

5.84 During pre-application discussions, residents of Sunningwell raised concerns 
that the bund facing the A34 would reflect noise back towards the village, 
increasing the noise levels they already experience from the road.  The Noise 
Assessment has monitored this at the nearest residential location on the 
northern side of the A34 and found the likely increase in noise to be 0.3db, 
which will be imperceptible against the existing noise levels.

5.85 The Council’s Environmental Health officer has reviewed the methodology 
and findings of the Noise Assessment and has no objection to the proposal, 
subject to the proposed mitigation being incorporated into the construction of 
the affected housing.  The recommended condition will secure this.

5.86 Landscape, Visual Impact and Trees
Core Policy 44 of the Local Plan states, “The key features that contribute to 
the nature and quality of the Vale…landscape will be protected from harmful 
development and where possible enhanced...”  The policy lists six key 
aspects to the landscape:

 Trees, hedgerows, woodland, field boundaries, watercourses and 
water bodies

 Landscape setting of settlements
 Topography
 Features of cultural and historic value
 Important views and visually sensitive skylines
 Tranquillity, protection from light pollution, noise and motion

5.87 The policy goes on to confirm that where development is acceptable in 
principle, proposals will be expected to:

 Incorporate appropriate landscape proposals that reflect the character 
of the area

 Preserve and promote local distinctiveness

5.88 The Site Development Template for this site specifies the following main 
additional points:

 Limit development to those parts of the site identified in the council’s 
landscape evidence base as being suitable for development

 Retain existing trees and hedgerows
 Plant additional trees along the A34, Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre 

Drive
 Further woodland planting south of Lodge Hill
 Consider potential impacts on the North Vale Corallian Ridge

Page 49



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

 Minimise visual impact on the Oxford Green Belt.

The application site itself does not fall within any designated landscape areas 
(the Oxford Green Belt is a land use designation and, following adoption of 
the Local Plan, the majority of the site was removed from the Green Belt).  
The site does fall within the local landscape designation of the North Vale 
Corallian Ridge.  Saved Policy NE7 of the Local Plan states, “Development 
which would harm the prevailing character and appearance of the North Vale 
Corallian Ridge…will not be permitted unless there is an overriding need for 
the development and all steps will be taken to minimise the impact on the 
landscape.”

5.89 As part of the evidence base for the Local Plan, the Vale instructed a district 
wide Landscape Capacity Study that covered this site.  This concluded that 
the westernmost parcel had a “medium” capacity to accept housing, the 
central parcel and part of the easternmost parcel had a “medium/low” 
capacity.  A more detailed assessment of the easternmost parcel was 
instructed later and concluded that there was some capacity for housing on 
this part of the site, subject to the introduction of screen planting to infill 
existing gaps in the boundary planting.

5.90 Landscape Character
The application is supported by a full Landscape and Visual Appraisal (LVIA).  
The LVIA first seeks to establish the existing character of the site and 
considers it can be broken down into three distinct Landscape Character 
Types based on the categorisation of the Oxfordshire Wildlife and Landscape 
Study (OWLS).

5.91 The westernmost parcel is part of a “Rolling Farmland” character area, 
including Abingdon Airfield on the northern side of the A34.  This part of the 
site is generally flat, with tree lined streams and the airfield buildings and 
floodlights at Tilsley Park visible.  

5.92 The centre part of the site and the countryside to the north is part of a 
“Wooded Estateland” character area.  Here the topography is rolling slopes, 
with large blocks of ancient woodland and a regularly shaped field pattern 
being the key characteristics.  

5.93 The easternmost parcel is largely part of a “Terraced Farmland” character 
area, which is particularly associated with the parkland around Radley village, 
and has a large scale, regularly shaped field pattern.  As per the evidence 
base for the Local Plan, this parcel is the most sensitive to landscape change 
due to the loss of the separation between Abingdon and Radley and the loss 
of the setting of Radley College.  This has led to the limiting of housing to the 
western parts of this parcel, with the sports pitches located closest to Radley 
and the College.

5.94 Having considered the key characteristics of each part of the site, the LVIA 
concludes that the overall sensitivity of the site’s landscape character to 
housing development to be “medium”.  This is largely consistent with the 

Page 50



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

findings of the council’s own studies which led to this site being allocated in 
the Local Plan.  In consultation, the council’s Landscape Architect has 
reviewed the methodology and conclusions within the LVIA assessment of 
landscape character and found them to be sound.    

5.95 Overall, officers recognise the development of this site for housing will have a 
marked impact on the landscape character of the area.  However, both the 
council’s own evidence and the LVIA conclude that there is capacity for 
housing on the site.  Through the allocation of the site, the council has 
accepted this change to the character, given the benefits of housing in this 
sustainable location.

5.96 Visibility
As part of the LVIA submitted, a zone of theoretical visibility (ZTV) was 
included to show potential areas surrounding the site from where the 
development might be visible. Various photomontage viewpoints have also 
been provided of the site from key vantage points to inform assessment of 
how the development would be seen within the landscape.  The ZTV takes a 
four kilometre radius from the central part of the site as its study zone.

5.97 The ZTV shows that a two-storey development on this site, “would not be 
visible from a significant amount of the study area, because of the lie of the 
land or the screening effects of intervening woodland or buildings.”  The ZTV 
shows that the clearest, and most sensitive views, are localised around the 
site.  The views from the footpath passing through the easternmost parcel and 
from the Bridleway are classified as the most sensitive to change (“high”), 
given their status and recreational use.  Views from the Oxford Green Belt 
Way, which crossed Lodge Hill to the north of the site and from Sunningwell 
are also classified as having a high sensitivity due to the expectations of 
views from these elevated points. Views from Radley College and the 
bridleway are classified as “medium-high”.  By comparison, views from Oxford 
Road by road users are considered to have only a “low” sensitivity to change.

5.98 Mitigation
The ZTV results have allowed the applicant to develop the following mitigation 
strategy, which needs to accord with the requirements of the Site 
Development Template:

 Retaining all existing blocks of woodland on and around the site
 Retaining all tree belts and hedgerows (except for vehicle access)
 Setting residential areas back from boundaries to allow for deep belts 

of planting
 Use of public open spaces to break up built form
 Planting up gaps in boundary hedgerows, including planting belts in 

excess of 15 metres alongside the A34 and the southeastern corner 
and the northern boundary of the easternmost parcel close to Radley

 Keeping the southeastern corner free from built development
 Retaining the footpath between the western and central parcel on its 

current alignment and re-routing the footpath through the eastern 
parcel along proposed green spaces

 Retaining the ditches and streams through the site as open 

Page 51



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

watercourses
 Introduce a SuDS scheme 
 Formation of embankments alongside the A34
 Planting belts of trees along the northern side of Dunmore Road to 

emulate those along Twelve Acre Drive. 

5.99 The Design Code includes further mitigation measures, such as street 
planting and the restriction of building heights on sensitive parts of the site, 
which have been discussed elsewhere in this report.

5.100 The LVIA concludes that the proposed mitigation will mean, 15 years after 
completion of the site, the impact on the three character areas identified will 
be “negligible” or “low-adverse”.  The LVIA considers that the overall scale of 
change from this development relative to the scale of Abingdon itself, will be 
low.  Officers are satisfied with this conclusion. 

5.101 In terms of the viewpoints most sensitive to change, the LVIA accepts that the 
footpath and bridleway passing through the site will continue to experience a 
“substantial adverse” change which is unavoidable.   However, in contrast, the 
LVIA contends the proposed mitigation will mean that the impact on the 
Greenbelt Way will only be “moderate” after 15 years.  

5.102 The LVIA also considers the cumulative effects of this site with the other 
planned development in the area.  In particular, the North West Radley 
allocation is of interest as it affects the same sensitive Terraced Farmland 
character area discussed above.  This further erosion of the gap between 
Radley and Abingdon will be a detractor on this landscape character.  
However, the LVIA contends that the proposed mitigation, particularly the 
planting belts, will mean the baseline impact on character will not change 
significantly.

5.103 Officers’ note that Radley Parish Council consider the buffer planting at this 
sensitive eastern edge of the site should be relocated to follow the course of 
the stream, rather than around the edge of the sports pitches.  However, the 
LVIA makes clear this planting is needed on the boundary and to relocate it 
would lessen the mitigation it offers for views from the east looking back 
towards the site.  The planting as proposed also allows for the new houses at 
the eastern end of the site to overlook the playing fields, providing natural 
surveillance and therefore a safer environment.  The council’s Landscape 
Architect does not agree with the views of Radley Parish Council on this 
matter.

5.104 In conclusion, the fact that this site has been allocated through the Local Plan 
process means that the council has already agreed to allow change to the 
landscape character of this part of the district.  However, as per the Site 
Development Template, the applicant has had to incorporate a range of 
measures into the design of the scheme so that the changes to the most 
sensitive parts of the area are moderated as much as possible.

5.105 Officers are satisfied that the indicative landscaping scheme, coupled with the 
landscape principles within the Design Code, will achieve the expectations of 

Page 52



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

the Local Plan allocation.  Clearly, the finer details will be agreed through the 
Reserved Matters process, but the recommended conditions will ensure this 
proposal has an acceptable impact on the landscape.

5.106 Flood Risk and drainage
Core Policy 42 of the Local Plan states the risk and impact of flooding will be 
minimised through:

 Directing new development to areas with the lowest probability of 
flooding

 Effectively managing all sources of flood risk
 Ensuring development does not increase flood risk elsewhere
 Ensuring wider environmental benefits

5.107 The application is supported by a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) that shows 
the vast majority of the site lies within Flood Zone 1, the area at least risk of 
flooding.   A small part of the western parcel falls within Flood Zones 2 and 3.  
The initial application indicated housing within these flood zones, which 
attracted an objection from the Environment Agency.  Through the submission 
of amended plans, the applicant has removed any built form from the flood 
zone associated with the stream that passes through this part of the site.  The 
FRA confirms that the site has a low probability of flooding from overland flow, 
ground water and sewer flooding.  Thus, the applicant has ensured all 
development will be in Flood Zone 1, as required by Core Policy 42. 

5.108 A number of local residents have concerns that this proposal will lead to an 
increased risk of flooding but officers are satisfied that the proposed SuDS 
scheme will ensure betterment compared to the current situation.  The FRA 
confirms that site specific infiltration testing shows soakaway drainage will not 
work on this site due to underlying ground conditions.  Therefore, the 
applicant proposes a scheme to control surface water that includes:

 Permeable paving
 Filter strips alongside roads
 Ditches and swales
 Attenuation Basins

5.109 The ditches, swales and basins, being above ground features, will be 
designed to enhance the biodiversity and landscape character of the site and 
are included as part of the Design Code and indicative landscape strategy for 
the site.  The proposed basin will be circa 1.8 hectares in size.

5.110 There are a number of catchment areas across all three parcels of the site 
that will provide adequate storage for a 1 in 100 year event story, whilst 
making a 30% allowance for climate change.  From these catchment areas, 
water discharge can be controlled to “greenfield” rates.  
  

5.111 Officers, and the council’s Drainage Engineer, are satisfied this proposal will 
not cause any increased flood risk, subject to the recommended conditions.

5.112 Turning to foul drainage, in consultation Thames Water have identified a lack 
of capacity in the existing sewer network to accommodate the additional flows 

Page 53



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

from this development, which is to be expected given the scale of the 
proposal and the edge of town location.  

5.113 The applicant has engaged with Thames Water on a Sewer Impact Study 
which has recommended two potential options to resolve this issue.  Both 
essentially require the applicant to fund new and larger sewer pipes from the 
development into a specified off-site manhole.  

5.114 Officers are satisfied, through the imposition of a standard Grampian 
condition on any outline planning permission, the finer details of a foul 
drainage strategy will be agreed prior to commencement and implemented 
prior to occupation.

5.115 Biodiversity
Core Policy 45 of the Local Plan confirms that a new gain in Green 
Infrastructure will be sought from all new development. Core Policy 46 
requires development to conserve, restore and enhance biodiversity.  The 
application has been supported by a number of ecological surveys (bats, 
birds, dormice, reptiles, badgers and Great Crested newts) and an Ecological 
Impact Assessment.

5.116 The site does not contain any national ecology designations, nor is it 
particularly close to any Local Wildlife Sites.  The Sugworth SSSI is relatively 
close but will be unaffected by the development.  In terms of species, some 
limited bat activity was recorded, with the woodland and connecting 
hedgerows providing foraging habitats and commuting routes for bats.  No 
evidence of bat roosts was found.  Bird surveys found 20 different species 
breeding on the site.  No reptiles, badgers or dormice were recorded during 
surveys.
 

5.117 Although the nature of the proposals will have some impact on the habitats 
across the site, the opportunities for ecological mitigation have been an 
integral part of the design.  The benefits of the proposed landscaping, 
additional planting and flood attenuation scheme to ecology have been 
highlighted earlier in this report.  The applicant has also committed to 
providing a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) and a 
Landscape and Ecology Management Plan (LEMP).  The CEMP will protect 
the important ecological features of the site during construction, whilst the 
LEMP sets out the long-term management of the landscape and habitats that 
will be created.  In terms of specific species mitigation, the applicant proposes 
to provide bat and bird boxes and sensitive lighting.

5.118 In consultation, the council’s Countryside Officer has confirmed no objections 
to the proposal, considering the methodology for assessing the value of the 
site, and the associated mitigation proposals to be acceptable.  Conditions 1, 
14, 26 and 27 of the recommendation will secure the biodiversity 
enhancement required by the Local Plan as well as the CEMP and LEMP 
discussed above.

5.119 Trees

Page 54



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

Saved Policy DC6 of the Local Plan 2011 requires all proposals for 
development to protect and enhance the visual amenities of the site, including 
existing landscape features.  The existing woodland (on and off-site) and the 
field hedgerows have been discussed in this report and their retention and 
incorporation into the new development is a requirement of the Site 
Development Template.

5.120 In consultation, the council’s Forestry Officer has assessed the Arboricultural 
Statement accompanying the application and is in agreement with the 
conclusions of the tree survey.  Consequently, the tree constraints of this site 
have informed the indicative layout.  Generally, it is only where access points 
are required that tree removal is necessary.  The vast majority of trees are 
retained.  The Forestry Officer is also supportive of the proposals to make the 
woodland accessible and encompass them as part of the public open space 
of the development.  

5.121 Officers consider that a phase by phase arboricultural method statement will 
be necessary to inform and support the future reserved matters applications 
for this site.  The Forestry Officer has not identified any obvious areas of 
concern, but the need to ensure that below ground services and flood 
attenuation are kept away from root protection areas will be for the detailed 
applications to demonstrate, in accordance with condition 17 of the 
recommendation.

5.122 Air Quality
Core Policy 43 relates to natural resources and references the need for new 
development to take account of the council’s Air Quality Action Plan when a 
proposal is within, or affects an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA).  Being 
on the edge of the town, there is no AQMA within nor close to the site.  
However, there is an AQMA within Abingdon Town Centre.

5.123 The council’s Air Quality officer has a holding objection to the proposal due to 
the increased traffic that would, without the Lodge Hill slip roads, pass 
through Abingdon town centre, increasing pollution within and close to the 
AQMA.  As discussed, condition 10 of the recommendation limits occupation 
on this site until such time as the funding for the slips is confirmed and a 
contract for delivering them has been let by the County Council.  As such, the 
scenario that leads to the holding objection from the Air Quality officer is 
unlikely to ever occur.

5.124 Dust during construction is a concern for the immediate area surrounding the 
site and a mitigation scheme can be secured by condition.

5.125 Historic Environment
Core Policy 39 of the Local Plan confirms the council will work to ensure that 
new development conserves and enhances designated and non-designated 
heritage and their setting.  The application is supported by a Heritage 
Statement.  This confirms that there are no designated or non-designated 
assets present within the site.

5.126 Within the vicinity of the site (1 kilometre) there are 23 heritage assets that 

Page 55



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

could be potentially affected by the development.  These include Grade II* 
listed buildings at Radley College and Peachcroft Farm barn (Grade II).  The 
majority of these have no visual or functional relationship with the site.

5.127 Radley Hall (GII*) is located nearly 500 metres northeast of the site and 
enjoys a prevailing rural character.  Whilst it could be argued that the site 
forms part of the wider arable landscape that contributes to the wider setting 
of the Hall, this setting has already been eroded by the extension of Abingdon 
northwards.  The council’s Conservation Officer is in agreement that the 
proposal is not considered to harm the significance of Radley Hall.

5.128 Radley College Chapel (GII*) falls within the main campus of Radley College 
and will be separated from the site by around 500 metres and an agricultural 
buffer.  Existing tree belts outside the application will almost entirely prevent 
intervisibility between the application site and the chapel.

5.129 The setting of Peachcroft Barn (GII) will be affected by these proposals but 
the Conservation Officer is satisfied that the evidential value of the barn will 
be retained, particularly as the existing agricultural surroundings will remain to 
north and east towards Radley and the College.

5.130 Overall, there are no concerns about the impact of this proposal on heritage 
assets.  What harm does occur only relates to the setting of heritage assets 
but this does not materially affect the significance of the asset itself.  This 
harm would constitute less than substantial harm and whilst this carries 
weight in the planning balance, the NPPF advices that harm must be weighed 
against the public benefits of the proposal.  Officers are satisfied the benefits 
far outweigh the limited harm to the setting of listed buildings identified.

5.131 Education
Core Policy 7 of the Local Plan states, “All new development will be required 
to provide for the necessary on-site and, where appropriate, off-site 
infrastructure requirements arising from the proposal.  Infrastructure 
requirements will be directly delivered by the development and/or through an 
appropriate financial contribution prior to, or in conjunction with, new 
development.  Where appropriate, developers will be expected to collaborate 
on the provision of infrastructure which is needed to serve more than one 
site….development proposals must demonstrate…full regard…to the 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan…”

5.132 In respect of education, the Site Development template requires the applicant 
to provide a “one and a half form entry” primary school on a 2.22 hectare site 
to allow for future growth and to contribution towards expanding secondary 
school capacity in Abingdon.   
  

5.133 Primary School
The County Council calculates that this development alone would generate 
206 primary pupils, which is sufficient to require a one form entry primary 
school on its own.  However, there is a need for this site to provide a school 

Page 56



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

that accommodates the additional primary school children that will be 
generated from the North West Abingdon allocation site as well.  This pushes 
the overall need to the one and a half form entry school, whilst the 2.22 
hectare site will allow for future expansion up to a two form entry school.

5.134 Through the submission of amended plans, the applicants have provided an 
indicative layout for the school site that is satisfactory to OCC.  As outlined 
above, the school is located within the central portion of the site, on the 
highest part of the land.  It is positioned as part of the community hub at the 
heart of the site, easily accessible from within the site on foot or by cycle.  At 
the time of writing, discussions are on-going as to whether the applicant will 
direct deliver the school or provide the land and a financial contribution to 
allow the OCC to deliver the school.  There are also discussions as to when 
the school will need to be open to receive new students.  These aspects will 
be enshrined within the Section 106 agreement accompanying any outline 
planning permission for this scheme.  If the applicant does deliver the school, 
the Section 106 agreement for North West Abingdon will include a 
mechanism for that developer to reimburse the applicant here, in line with the 
collaborative approach required by Core Policy 7.

5.135 Secondary School
OCC anticipates this development will generate approximately 172 secondary 
school pupils (including 24 sixth form students).  This demand will be provided 
for through the expansion of an existing secondary school, although the 
County Council reserves its position on the need for a new secondary school 
in the area.  A financial contribution of £3,612,000 has been agreed to the 
provision of additional secondary school accommodation in the area. 

5.136 Special Educational Needs (SEN) 
OCC anticipates that this development will generate 4.3 pupils who have 
additional educational needs that will be met by the Kingfisher School on the 
Radley Road.  A financial contribution of £157,741 has been agreed towards 
the extension of this school on its current site.

5.137 Nursery provision
OCC considers this development will generate the need to accommodate 38 
nursery pupils and the applicant proposes to provide a new nursery as part of 
the Local Centre.  This building will need to meet the requirements of the 
Early Years Foundation Stage Statutory Framework and, to be economically 
viable, will need to be of a size to accommodate 60 children (baby to pre-
school).  The Section 106 agreement accompanying the application will 
incorporate a specification for the nursery.

5.138 Infrastructure and financial contributions
The NPPF advises that planning obligations should only be sought where 
they meet all of the following tests in paragraph 204: 

I. Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning 
terms; 

Page 57



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

II. Directly related to the development; and
III. Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 

development.

5.139 In line with the requirements of the Development Plan, including the 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan, this development will provide for a wide range of 
facilities, through on-site provisions and financial contributions to off-site 
improvements.  At the time of writing, the Section 106 agreement is under 
negotiation.  The following table summarises the current position, illustrating 
the current costed contributions which are considered fair and proportionate 
to the development and therefore justified.  The table does not include on site 
provision.

Oxfordshire County Council
Proposed Contributions

Lodge Hill slips £3,325,000
“35” bus service extension £454,271
Signalised road crossings £187,869.64
Cycle storage at Radley Storage £20,000
Bus shelters on Oxford Road x 2 £14,900 + £14,900 

maintenance
Bus shelters on Dunmore Road and 
Twelve Acre Drive x 6

£24,690 + £24,690 
maintenance

Bus information boards on Oxford 
Road

£2,180

Bus information boards on Dunmore 
Road and Oxford Road

£4,020

Real time information boards for all bus 
stops

£60,976

Public right of way network 
improvements

£130,000

Travel Plan monitoring £6,560
Primary Education (if no direct delivery) £5,400,000
Secondary Education £3,612,000
Special Educational Needs £157,741
Abingdon library £224,763
Strategic Waste Management £176,599.50
Adult Day Care £47,586
Total £13,888,746.14

Vale of White Horse District Council 
Proposed Contributions

Tennis provision £70,840
Rugby provision £71,617
Public Art £285,000
Wheeled Bin provision £161,500
Street Naming £10,241
Total (costed items only) £599,198

Page 58



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

Overall Total £14,487,944.14
Total per Dwelling £15,250

5.140 Highway improvements
As outlined in some detail above, officers consider the Lodge Hill slips is a 
vital piece of highway infrastructure that will facilitate the delivery of this 
development as well as the North West Abingdon, North West Radley and 
South Kennington housing allocations.  Accordingly, all of these allocations 
will be expected to financially contribute to the delivery of the slip roads at a 
ratio of £3,500 per dwelling.  This levy is based on the funding gap between 
the total cost of the project and the anticipated funding from Central 
Government.  With 950 dwellings proposed on this site, the total contribution 
from this application for the Lodge Hill slips will be, indicatively, £3,325,000.  
This contribution has been agreed by the applicant

5.141 As outlined earlier in this report, the applicant proposes a range of highway 
improvement works (roundabouts, cycle links, etc.) that will be secured 
through a Section 278 agreement that will require the applicant to fully deliver 
the proposals.  The Section 106 agreement will also secure a per dwelling 
contribution of £478.18 to the extension to the “35” bus route discussed 
above, indicatively a total contribution of £454,271.

5.142 In consultation, the County Council has also requested contributions to the 
following necessary, related and relevant highway improvements:

- Pedestrian Crossings
- Bus Shelters (and commuted maintenance sums)
- Bus Information Boards
- Real-time Information boards for bus shelters
- Cycle Storage
- Public Rights of Way Improvements
- Travel Plan monitoring

5.143 County Council property
OCC is responsible for a range of community facilities and accordingly has 
sought financial contributions from this development to meet the additional 
demand that will be placed upon them.  This includes contributions to the 
expansion of Abingdon library at The Charter (£224,763), the creation of a 
new Strategic Waste Management site (£176,599.50) and to expand the Adult 
Day Care Centre in Abingdon (£47,586).  Officers are satisfied that these 
contributions pass the test within the NPPF.

5.144 Sports and play provision
The council’s emerging Leisure and Sports Facility Study (LSFS) and Playing 
Pitch Strategy (PPS) require the site to provide 2.4 hectares of football 
pitches and pavilion, 1.454 hectares of cricket pitches and pavilion (can be 
shared with football) and a MUGA.    Accordingly, the precise level of sports 
pitch provision in the southeastern corner of this site has been a matter of 
some negotiation during the assessment of this application.  The amended 
plans have increased the overall area for pitches to 2.6 hectares and propose 

Page 59



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

a U13/U14 football pitch, a U17/U18 football pitch, a cricket square (with the 
outfield overlapping the two football pitches), a sports pavilion and a multi-use 
games area (MUGA).  

5.145 In consultation, the council’s Leisure team indicates that, preferably, the 
cricket pitch should be entirely separate from the football pitches.  This is the 
approach outlined in the PPS.  However, officers consider that the amended 
plans show that the cricket square can be protected within the pitch layout 
and there are many examples of a cricket outfield overlapping with football 
pitches given the seasonal nature of the two sports at an amateur level.  The 
Section 106 agreement will include a specification for the pitches to ensure 
they are both fit for purpose for football and cricket.  

5.146 The application also provides for a MUGA to standard size and a sports 
pavilion, the details of which will form part of a subsequent reserved matters 
application. It is at that stage that the precise footprint, scale and design of the 
MUGA and pavilion will be finalised.  Officers see no reason why that pavilion 
cannot be designed to be suitable for cricket and football.  Overall, officers are 
satisfied that the amended proposals ensure playing pitch provision in 
accordance with the LSFS and PPS.  The Section 106 agreement 
accompanying any planning permission will finalise the finer details of the 
sports pitch provision, including when it will be provided relative to the build 
out of the site.  It is anticipated this will be towards the end of the build 
programme as the eastern parcel of land will be delivered last. 

5.147 As well as the on-site provision, the applicant will be expected to make 
contributions to off-site sport and recreation provision as follows:

 Tennis – Supporting local needs as per the LSFS - £70,840
 Rugby – 0.35 hectares of a pitch as per the PPS - £71,617
 Indoor sport – under negotiation with local clubs

5.148 The proposed play provision is considered acceptable and the applicant will 
be responsible for setting up a management company to maintain the play 
areas, as well as the public open space and sports pitches.  This will be 
secured through the Section 106 agreement.

5.149 Health
A number of neighbours have raised concerns that this development will 
place additional pressure on already stretched GP surgeries, in particular 
Long Furlong.  Officers have liaised with the Oxfordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) over options to accommodate the additional 
demand from this development and the two nearby allocated sites (North 
West Abingdon and North West Radley).  The CCG consider that these three 
proposals will generate approximately 3,400 additional patients.  It has 
become apparent there is no scope to extend the existing Long Furlong 
surgery on its current site to meet this additional demand.  

5.150 Accordingly, officers have negotiated that the Local Centre will include land 
for a branch surgery.  The land passed over to the CCG will accommodate a 
surgery capable of serving 4,000 patients, allowing room for future population 
growth over and above that currently planned.  The CCG can then seek CIL 

Page 60



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

or Section 106 receipts to assist in the capital costs of the project and can 
develop the surgery alongside the other facilities likely to be provided in this 
part of the site.

5.151 Other Vale contributions
As is standard practice for major housing applications such as this, the 
council will collect financial contributions to public art (£300/dwelling), 
wheeled bins (£170/dwelling) and street naming (£107.80/10 dwellings)

5.152 Sunningwell and Radley Parish Council requests
Radley Parish Council have made the following requests for financial 
contributions to local projects within their parish.  These projects are 
enshrined in their emerging Neighbourhood Plan:

 Cycleway from this site to Radley village and Station
 Additional secure cycle storage at Radley Station
 Improved disabled access at Radley Station
 Radley Lakes Strategy

5.153 As discussed in Paras 5.37-5.39, officers from both OCC and the Vale are 
supportive of the cycle link proposal along Twelve Acre Drive to link to the 
existing cycle link on Radley Road.  The draft Neighbourhood Plan suggests 
an alternative route crossing the private land of Peachcroft Farm, which is not 
available at this time.  However, an alternative solution is feasible and will be 
delivered by the applicant.  As such, a Section 106 contribution is not 
necessary for this project.  The additional cycle storage at Radley Station is 
also agreed.  However, officers do not consider that the improvements to 
disabled access at the station itself is a reasonable contribution.  This is 
primarily because Network Rail are responsible for maintaining and upgrading 
their stations and there is no clear indication that they are supportive of the 
Parish’s approach.  Thus, there is no guarantees this is a deliverable or 
realistic project and so cannot be considered necessary to make this 
application acceptable in planning terms.

5.154 The Radley Lakes Strategy is part of the draft Neighbourhood Plan and is 
essentially a plan to provide a recreation and nature conservation area 
accessible to the public and includes:

 A new car park
 A new access road
 New footpaths 

5.155 The applicant has resisted this contribution as they considered this application 
makes appropriate provision for public open space and opportunities for 
outdoor recreation.  Officers agree that it would be difficult to argue that this 
contribution is “necessary” to make this application acceptable in planning 
terms when it meets all policy requirements in respect of open space and 
recreation.  

5.156 Officers will continue to liaise with Sunningwell Parish Council as to which 
projects they would like to see funded through Section 106.

Page 61



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

6.0 CONCLUSION
6.1 This application has been assessed on its merits, against the Development 

Plan and the provisions of the NPPF.  The principle of this application can be 
supported as the site is allocated within the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 
2031 Part One and represents sustainable development as defined and 
required by the NPPF, which outlines the “social”, “economic” and 
“environmental” aspects to sustainable development.
 

6.2 The application will play a “social” role through the provision of 950 houses on 
a site allocated for housing within the Local Plan.  In line with Council policy, 
35% of these houses will be affordable, whilst an acceptable mix of market 
housing is proposed.  This site is in a sustainable location for housing in 
district, being well located in relation to Abingdon, the A34 and Oxford. 
Abingdon is one of the most sustainable settlements in the Vale and so is seen 
as a growth area.  It has all the necessary facilities to support an increase in 
the population and is a town that the Local Plan confirms is needed to 
accommodate some of the increased housing demands placed on the district.

6.3 The proposal will bring forward a Local Centre that will include a new primary 
school, a branch surgery, a care home and community facilities.  The scheme 
will also offer new sports pitch provision and make financial contributions to a 
new bus service to serve this part of the town.  These are all social benefits 
that should be afforded positive weight in the planning balancing exercise.

6.4 The scheme will have an “economic” role through increased employment 
through the construction phase and in the community facilities to be built and 
operated post-completion of the scheme.   The residents of the development 
will provide increased investment in the local economy.  

6.5 The applicant will make a proportionate financial contribution to the Lodge Hill 
slip road project and a Grampian condition will restrict occupancy rates on this 
site until certainty over the slip roads is secured.  This, coupled with the 
proposed improvements to the most severely affected road junctions, public 
transport, cycle and pedestrian links, means that the development will have an 
acceptable impact on highway safety.

6.6 In terms of the “environmental” role, the application is accompanied by a 
comprehensive Design Code that will ensure a consistency of approach to 
buildings, streets, public squares and public open space across all phases of 
the development to ensure a high quality scheme.  The application also 
includes a comprehensive landscaping scheme that ensures the retention of 
existing trees, hedgerows and ancient woodland and significant new levels of 
planting to ensure that the wider visual impact of these proposals are limited, in 
line with the requirements of the Site Development Template.

6.7 Overall, in the planning balance, it is considered that this proposal represents 
sustainable development and offers clear benefits in terms of delivering one of 
the largest strategic allocations in the Local Plan 2031 Part One early in the 
plan period.  The proposal offers clear community benefits through the 
provision of a new school, GP surgery, sports pitches, specialist 

Page 62



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

accommodation for the elderly and allowing the creation of a new bus route 
that serves Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive.  Conditions are 
recommended which will help to mitigate the impact of this development and 
contributions towards infrastructure will be secured by through the S106 
agreement.
 

6.8 This application is recommended for approval.

The following planning policies have been taken into account:
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part One Core Policies (CP)
CP01  -  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP02  -  Cooperation on Unmet Housing Need for Oxfordshire
CP03  -  Settlement Hierarchy
CP04  -  Meeting Our Housing Needs
CP07  -  Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services
CP08  -  Spatial Strategy for Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe
CP22  -  Housing Mix
CP23  -  Housing Density
CP24  -  Affordable Housing
CP26  -  Accomodating Current and Future Needs of the Ageing Population
CP32  -  Retail Development and other Main Town Centre Uses
CP33  -  Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
CP34 -   A34 Strategy
CP35  -  Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP36  -  Electronic communications
CP37  -  Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP38  -  Design Strategies for Strategic and Major Development Sites
CP39  -  The Historic Environment
CP40  -  Sustainable Design and Construction
CP41  -  Renewable Energy
CP42  -  Flood Risk
CP43  -  Natural Resources
CP44  -  Landscape
CP45  -  Green Infrastructure
CP46  -  Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity
CP47  -  Delivery and Contingency

Saved Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 policies;
DC3  -  Design against crime
DC4  -  Public Art
DC5  -  Access
DC6  -  Landscaping
DC7  -  Waste Collection and Recycling
DC9  -  The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses
DC10  - Effect of Neighbouring or Previous Uses on New Development
DC12  -  Water Quality and Resources
H23  -  Open Space in New Housing Development
NE7  -  The North Vale Corrallian Ridge
TR3  -  A34 related development

Page 63



Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 20 June 2017

Neighbourhood Plan
Although Neighbourhood Plans for Sunningwell and Radley are being 
progressed, the agreed Designated Area for both plans excludes this site.  
Therefore, the emerging policies in these Plans are not relevant to the 
assessment of this application.  

Supplementary Planning Guidance
 Design Guide – March 2015
 Open space, sport and recreation future provision – July 2008
 Affordable Housing – July 2006
 Flood Maps and Flood Risk – July 2006
 Planning and Public Art – July 2006

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) – March 2012 

Planning Practice Guidance 2014 (PPG)

Human Rights Act 
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in 
the processing of the application and the preparation of this report.

Equalities 
In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its equalities 
obligations including its obligations under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.

Author:     Peter Brampton, Major Applications Officer
Email:       peter.brampton@southandvale.gov.uk
Tel:            01235 422600

Page 64



7

12

ET
L

L Twr

27

13
A 34

PEN LANE

TCP
(AA)

30

17

25

21

Tr
ac

k

DUNMORE R
OAD

ETL

Track

L Twr

Path

L Twr

Lay-B
y

L Twr

R
O

S
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E

L Twr

ED & W
ard

 Bdy

CR

P
ath (um

)

14

21

35

82

43

L Twr

Peach Croft Cottage

Peach Croft Farm

Tank

Tr
ac

k

Cattle Grid

9

1

10

10

6

9

Drain

137

Depot

Path

21

DUNMORE ROAD

4

133

2 6

10

Shelter

13
9

13
8

15

CR ED & Ward Bdy

Sub
Sta

El

W
ar

d 
Bd

y
1.

22
m

 R
H

D
ef

D
ef

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Blake's Oak

75.1m

Blake's Oak

57

to

5450

54

M
AT

TO
C

K 
W

AY

59
5259

53

58

56

O
XF

O
R

D
 R

O
AD

57

55

Lodge Hill

60

51

61

BA
RFL

EU
R

9

CLO
SE

2

9

3

4

13

PYTENRY
CLOSE 1

20

COVENT

Drain

CLO
SE

16
1

7

2

8

15

CR

36

Sadlers Court

22

30

Radley Park

18

19

28

25

Pond

E
D

 &
 W

ar
d 

B
dy

1

TWELVE ACRE DRIVE

4

D
rain

5

ED & Ward Bdy

8

4

5

11

3

22

12

24

11

13

1217

1

58

to

1

7

10

Drain

64

23

29

46

60

55

35

21

26

62

43

38

45

63
61

37

17

24

27
20

16

44

Site boundary

LEGEND

Residential development

Primary school

Mixed use development

Existing woodland / tree canopy
to be retained

Buffer planting

Multi-functional green space*

Outdoor sports including pitches, 
parking and pavillion building

SuDS attentuation

Primary vehicular road

30m corridor for primary vehicular road***

* Refer to Parameter Plan - Open Space Provision for details
regarding the types of multi-functional green space.

** Highways land required for junction improvements, serving 
multiple uses or not directly serving residential development.

*** The alignment of the primary road may deviate within the 
limits of the 30m corridor.

Highways**
Date

Rev

Drg No

Client

Project

Title

Scale

DescriptionRev

D

DE187_013

CEG

North Abingdon-On-Thames

Parameter Plan - Land Use

1:2,500 @ A1

0 50 100 150 200 250 m

Appendix 1

P
age 65



7

12

ET
L

L Twr

27

13
A 34

PEN LANE

TCP
(AA)

30

17

25

21

Tr
ac

k

DUNMORE R
OAD

ETL

Track

L Twr

Path

L Twr

Lay-B
y

L Twr

R
O

S
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E

L Twr

ED & W
ard

 Bdy

CR

P
ath (um

)

14

21

35

82

43

L Twr

Peach Croft Cottage

Peach Croft Farm

Tank

Tr
ac

k

Cattle Grid

9

1

10

10

6

9

Drain

137

Depot

Path

21

DUNMORE ROAD

4

133

2 6

10

Shelter

13
9

13
8

15

CR ED & Ward Bdy

Sub
Sta

El

W
ar

d 
Bd

y
1.

22
m

 R
H

D
ef

D
ef

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Blake's Oak

75.1m

Blake's Oak

57

to

5450

54

M
AT

TO
C

K 
W

AY

59
5259

53

58

56

O
XF

O
R

D
 R

O
AD

57

55

Lodge Hill

60

51

61

BA
RFL

EU
R

9

CLO
SE

2

9

3

4

13

PYTENRY
CLOSE 1

20

COVENT

Drain

CLO
SE

16
1

7

2

8

15

CR

36

Sadlers Court

22

30

Radley Park

18

19

28

25

Pond

E
D

 &
 W

ar
d 

B
dy

1

TWELVE ACRE DRIVE

4

D
rain

5

ED & Ward Bdy

8

4

5

11

3

22

12

24

11

13

1217

1

58

to

1

7

10

Drain

64

23

29

46

60

55

35

21

26

62

43

38

45

63
61

37

17

24

27
20

16

44

Site boundary

LEGEND

Development parcels

Primary vehicular road

30m corridor for primary vehicular road*

* The alignment of the primary road may deviate within the 
limits of the 30m corridor.

For further details regarding the new / improved junctions, and proposed 
crossing points and bus stops refer to the Transport Assessment.

Indicative secondary road

Indicative access to sports pitches, parking and pavillion building

Retained bridleway

Retained public footpath

Public footpath to be diverted

Proposed footpath diversion

Indicative key footpaths

Cycleway

Proposed toucan crossing

Existing uncontrolled crossing

Proposed uncontrolled crossing

Existing bus stop

Proposed bus stop

New / improved junction

Proposed pegasus crossing

Date

Rev

Drg No

Client

Project

Title

Scale

DescriptionRev

E

DE187_016

CEG

North Abingdon-On-Thames

Parameter Plan - Access & Movement

1:2,500 @ A1

0 50 100 150 200 250 m

P
age 66



7

12

ET
L

L Twr

27

13
A 34

PEN LANE

TCP
(AA)

30

17

25

21

Tr
ac

k

DUNMORE R
OAD

ETL

Track

L Twr

Path

L Twr

Lay-B
y

L Twr

R
O

S
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E

L Twr

ED & W
ard

 Bdy

CR

P
ath (um

)

14

21

35

82

43

L Twr

Peach Croft Cottage

Peach Croft Farm

Tank

Tr
ac

k

Cattle Grid

9

1

10

10

6

9

Drain

137

Depot

Path

21

DUNMORE ROAD

4

133

2 6

10

Shelter

13
9

13
8

15

CR ED & Ward Bdy

Sub
Sta

El

W
ar

d 
Bd

y
1.

22
m

 R
H

D
ef

D
ef

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Blake's Oak

75.1m

Blake's Oak

57

to

5450

54

M
AT

TO
C

K 
W

AY

59
5259

53

58

56

O
XF

O
R

D
 R

O
AD

57

55

Lodge Hill

60

51

61

BA
RFL

EU
R

9

CLO
SE

2

9

3

4

13

PYTENRY
CLOSE 1

20

COVENT

Drain

CLO
SE

16
1

7

2

8

15

CR

36

Sadlers Court

22

30

Radley Park

18

19

28

25

Pond

E
D

 &
 W

ar
d 

B
dy

1

TWELVE ACRE DRIVE

4

D
rain

5

ED & Ward Bdy

8

4

5

11

3

22

12

24

11

13

1217

1

58

to

1

7

10

Drain

64

23

29

46

60

55

35

21

26

62

43

38

45

63
61

37

17

24

27
20

16

44

Site boundary

LEGEND

Existing woodland / tree canopy
to be retained

Buffer planting

Natural and amenity green space

Outdoor sports including pitches, 
parking and pavillion building

SuDS attentuation

Primary vehicular road

30m corridor for primary vehicular road*

* The alignment of the primary road may deviate within the 
limits of the 30m corridor.

Formal play

Central square

Indicative location of Neighbourhood 
Equipped Area of Play (NEAP)

Indicative location of Local 
Equipped Area of Play (LEAP)

Indicative location of Multi-use
Games Area (MUGA)

Indicative location of sports pitches

Indicative location of pavillion building

Acoustic mitigation area and natural 
green space

Swales

Date

Rev

Drg No

Client

Project

Title

Scale

DescriptionRev

D

DE187_017

CEG

North Abingdon-On-Thames

Parameter Plan - Open Space Provision

1:2,500 @ A1

0 50 100 150 200 250 m

P
age 67



7

12

ET
L

L Twr

27

13
A 34

PEN LANE

TCP
(AA)

30

17

25

21

Tr
ac

k

DUNMORE R
OAD

ETL

Track

L Twr

Path

L Twr

Lay-B
y

L Twr

R
O

S
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E

L Twr

ED & W
ard

 Bdy

CR

P
ath (um

)

14

21

35

82

43

L Twr

Peach Croft Cottage

Peach Croft Farm

Tank

Tr
ac

k

Cattle Grid

9

1

10

10

6

9

Drain

137

Depot

Path

21

DUNMORE ROAD

4

133

2 6

10

Shelter

13
9

13
8

15

CR ED & Ward Bdy

Sub
Sta

El

W
ar

d 
Bd

y
1.

22
m

 R
H

D
ef

D
ef

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Blake's Oak

75.1m

Blake's Oak

57

to

5450

54

M
AT

TO
C

K 
W

AY

59
5259

53

58

56

O
XF

O
R

D
 R

O
AD

57

55

Lodge Hill

60

51

61

BA
RFL

EU
R

9

CLO
SE

2

9

3

4

13

PYTENRY
CLOSE 1

20

COVENT

Drain

CLO
SE

16
1

7

2

8

15

CR

36

Sadlers Court

22

30

Radley Park

18

19

28

25

Pond

E
D

 &
 W

ar
d 

B
dy

1

TWELVE ACRE DRIVE

4

D
rain

5

ED & Ward Bdy

8

4

5

11

3

22

12

24

11

13

1217

1

58

to

1

7

10

Drain

64

23

29

46

60

55

35

21

26

62

43

38

45

63
61

37

17

24

27
20

16

44

Site boundary

LEGEND

Residential development - up to 25 dph

Residential development - up to 30 dph

Residential development - up to 35 dph

Primary vehicular road

30m corridor for primary vehicular road*

* The alignment of the primary road may deviate within the 
limits of the 30m corridor. Densities along the primary road  
relate to this route and will also deviate accordingly.

Residential development - up to 40 dph

Primary school

Mixed use development

Date

Rev

Drg No

Client

Project

Title

Scale

DescriptionRev

D

DE187_014

CEG

North Abingdon-On-Thames

Parameter Plan - Density

1:2,500 @ A1

0 50 100 150 200 250 m

P
age 68



7

12

ET
L

L Twr

27

13
A 34

PEN LANE

TCP
(AA)

30

17

25

21

Tr
ac

k

DUNMORE R
OAD

ETL

Track

L Twr

Path

L Twr

Lay-B
y

L Twr

R
O

S
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E

L Twr

ED & W
ard

 Bdy

CR

P
ath (um

)

14

21

35

82

43

L Twr

Peach Croft Cottage

Peach Croft Farm

Tank

Tr
ac

k

Cattle Grid

9

1

10

10

6

9

Drain

137

Depot

Path

21

DUNMORE ROAD

4

133

2 6

10

Shelter

13
9

13
8

15

CR ED & Ward Bdy

Sub
Sta

El

W
ar

d 
Bd

y
1.

22
m

 R
H

D
ef

D
ef

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

Blake's Oak

75.1m

Blake's Oak

57

to

5450

54

M
AT

TO
C

K 
W

AY

59
5259

53

58

56

O
XF

O
R

D
 R

O
AD

57

55

Lodge Hill

60

51

61

BA
RFL

EU
R

9

CLO
SE

2

9

3

4

13

PYTENRY
CLOSE 1

20

COVENT

Drain

CLO
SE

16
1

7

2

8

15

CR

36

Sadlers Court

22

30

Radley Park

18

19

28

25

Pond

E
D

 &
 W

ar
d 

B
dy

1

TWELVE ACRE DRIVE

4

D
rain

5

ED & Ward Bdy

8

4

5

11

3

22

12

24

11

13

1217

1

58

to

1

7

10

Drain

64

23

29

46

60

55

35

21

26

62

43

38

45

63
61

37

17

24

27
20

16

44

Site boundary

LEGEND

Up to 10m to top of ridgeline (residential up to 2 storeys)

Up to 11.5m to top of ridgeline (residential up to 2.5 storeys)

Up to 12.5m to top of ridgeline (residential up to 3 storeys)

Primary vehicular road

30m corridor for primary vehicular road*

NOTES:
The height parameters set out above are to ridge height and exclude chimneys or flues. The 
heights for residential and mixed-use development are set from existing ground levels. 
These have been set at such a level to allow for flexibility to be introduced in the roofline and 
steepness of roof pitches and to take account for groundworks which may be required.

* The alignment of the primary road may deviate within the limits of the 30m corridor. Building 
heights along the primary road relate to this route and will also deviate accordingly.

Up to 10.0m to top of ridgeline (primary school up to 2 storeys)

Up to 12.5m to top of ridgeline (mixed-use up to 3 storeys)

Acoustic bund and fence up to 5m in height (to incorporate buffer planting)
Date

Rev

Drg No

Client

Project

Title

Scale

DescriptionRev

G

DE187_015

CEG

North Abingdon-On-Thames

Parameter Plan - Maximum Building Heights

1:2,500 @ A1

0 50 100 150 200 250 m

P
age 69



Page 70



Page 71



P
age 72

sav_sharone
Typewriter
Appendix 2



P
age 73



P
age 74



Appendix 3 – Summary of Highway Modelling 
 

1.0  Policy Background 
 
1.1 The NPPF (Paragraph 32) requires plans and decisions to take 

account of whether: 
 the opportunities for sustainable transport modes have been taken 

up depending on the nature and location of the site, to reduce the 
need for major transport infrastructure; 

 safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all people; 
and 

 improvements can be undertaken within the transport network that            
effectively limit the significant impacts of the development. 

 
1.2 Paragraph 32 goes on to state: “Development should only be 

prevented or refused on transport grounds where the residual 
cumulative impacts of development are severe”. 

 
1.3 Saved Policy DC5 of the Local Plan 2011 requires safe access for 

developments and that the surrounding road network can 
accommodate the traffic arising from the development safely.  Core 
Policy 7 requires developments to make in-kind or financial 
contributions to a wide range of supporting infrastructure, in 
accordance with the council’s Infrastructure Delivery Plan. 

 
2.0  Evidence Base for Local Plan 2031 Part One 
 
2.1 To assist the Vale’s work on the Local Plan 2031 Part One, Oxfordshire 

County Council prepared the Oxfordshire Strategic Model (OSM) that 
incorporates the Evaluation of Transport Impacts (ETI) Study.  

 
2.2 The ETI identified where on the wider highway network significant 

capacity constraints would occur if all 20,560 dwellings were built in the 
district across the plan period.  The ETI also included allowances for 
mitigation, such as the south-facing slip roads at Lodge Hill, to 
understand how this would affect capacity on local roads.  The council 
has concluded that delivering these slip roads is essential mitigation 
that allows the North Abingdon allocation to be supported.  

 
3.0  “Study Area” 
 
3.1 Given the strategic, district wide, nature of the ETI, the applicants were 

required to agree a scope for assessing the local road network with 
OCC as the Highway Authority.  The agreed “Study Area” included the 
following junctions: 
 Dunmore Road / Boulter Drive - Priority ‘T’-Junction; 
 Oxford Road / Twelve Acre Drive / Dunmore Road - Roundabout 

junction; 
 Twelve Acre Drive / Peachcroft Road - Priority ‘T’-Junction; 

Page 75



 Twelve Acre Drive / Radley Road / Audlett Drive - Roundabout 
junction; 

 Radley Road / Audlett Drive - Mini-roundabout junction; 
 Radley Road / Vineyard / Oxford Road - Mini-roundabout junction; 
 Vineyard / Stert Street / Stratton Way - Signalised ‘T’-Junction; 
 High Street / Stert Street - Priority ‘T’-Junction; 
 Stratton Way / High Street / Ock Street - Signalised ‘T’-Junction; 
 Bath Street / Stratton Way - Priority ‘T’-Junction; and 
 Dunmore Road / Wootton Road / Copenhagen Drive - Roundabout 

junction. 
 
3.2 The applicant undertook a range of traffic surveys across Abingdon in 

2015, including Classified Turning Counts, Queue Length Surveys and 
Automatic Traffic Counts.  The date, times and locations of the surveys 
were agreed with OCC.   

 
3.3 These surveys allowed the existing traffic situation to be established 

and from there, the applicant was able to model the likely impacts of 
the proposed development, understand where those impacts would be 
severe and develop a mitigation strategy to reduce those impacts. 

 
4.0 Trip Generation 
 
4.1 To be able to model the impacts of this proposal, the applicant has 

agreed with OCC the likely trip generations from the development, 
covering all of the proposed uses within the site.  These uses can be 
summarised: 
 Residential – including 35% affordable housing and 10% of 

affordable and market housing being apartments 
 Education – including allowances for “internal” trips that will not 

impact on the wider highway network 
 Retirement accommodation – all trips assumed to be “external”  
 Local Centre – including Public Houses, Care Home, Nursery, Food 

Retail and Non-Food retail/commercial. 
 
4.2 With the local centre, it is assumed that 100% of the care home trips 

will be external, whilst 20% of the public house, 20% of the nursery, 
50% of the food retail, 30% of the non-food retail and 20% of the 
commercial services will be external trips.  These assumptions have 
been agreed with OCC. 

 
4.3 The applicant has used 2011 Census data as a basis for understanding 

the likely distribution of where new residents will travel.  The main 
destinations are Oxford (34% of trips), Harwell/Didcot (17%), Central 
Abingdon (16%) and West Abingdon (11%).  Building on the above, the 
applicant has assessed traffic movements at a number of different 
years over the predicted build-out programme of the site.  These 
assessment years include scenarios where no development occurs on 
this site (“do nothing”) and scenarios where the site builds out as 

Page 76



predicted (“do something”).  The assessment also incorporates other 
anticipated housing growth, including nearby strategic sites.  The 
applicants Transport Consultant has, for example, shared trip 
generation information with the transport consultant behind the 
forthcoming Northwest Radley allocation to ensure a consistency of 
approach.  Where no detailed information is available, the TEMPRO 
model has been applied with the agreement of OCC.   

 
4.4 There is also an allowance made for changes in existing residents’ trip 

patterns changing once the Lodge Hill slips are open.  It is a logical 
part of the applicant’s case that the slips will have a positive impact in 
terms of traffic flows along Dunmore Road, as those existing residents 
who want to travel south on the A34 will be able to do so from Lodge 
Hill, rather than having to work their way to the Marcham Interchange 
through the known traffic congestion points in Abingdon town centre. 

 
4.5 The purpose of running these differing scenarios is to understand 

which junctions will experience the greatest change in traffic flows 
when the “do nothing” and “do something” scenarios are compared.  
Where the “do something” scenario shows a greater than 5% increase 
in traffic flow compared to the “do nothing” scenario, it was agreed with 
OCC that further investigation of these junctions was needed.  The 
Transport Assessment identified two junctions that required further 
investigation: 

 
 Dunmore Road / Boulter Drive – Priority ‘T’-Junction 
 Oxford Road/ Twelve Acre Drive/ Dunmore Road – Roundabout 

 
4.6 It is important to be clear that all other junctions, based on the agreed 

trip generation and distribution rates, were found to not experience 
more than a 5% increase in traffic as a result of this development and 
so have not been investigated further. 

 
5.0 Junction Modelling 
 
5.1 The applicant has analysed the capacity of these two existing junctions 

in line with standard practice, focussing on the Ratio of Flow to 
Capacity (RFC) and queue length.  It is generally accepted that a 
junction is operating within capacity if the RFC is 0.85 or less at the AM 
or PM peak hours.   

 
5.2 Using the baseline year of 2015, both these junctions were found to be 

operating within capacity.  The applicant has then run “do nothing” 
scenarios for 2020, 2024 and 2028 that assumes that the Lodge Hill 
slips are operational and all other planned development apart from this 
site takes place.  These scenarios find that the Oxford Road 
roundabout will exceed a RFC of 0.85 in the PM peak in 2024 and in 
both AM and PM peaks in 2028.  This is, in part, caused by the 
opening of the Lodge Hill slips encouraging greater use of this 

Page 77



roundabout, meaning that improvements to the Oxford Road 
roundabout will be necessary in future. 

 
5.3 The applicant has then run the “do something” scenarios for these two 

junctions, again based on the predicted build out rates for the site.  The 
results show both junctions within capacity in 2020, the Oxford Road 
roundabout over capacity in 2024 and 2028 at AM and PM peak hours.  
This means that mitigation works are necessary as a direct result of 
this application, and these are discussed in the report. 

 
5.4 In consultation, OCC has reviewed the methodology and findings of the 

Transport Assessment and are satisfied with the conclusions. 
 
 

Page 78


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 P17/V0050/O - Land north of Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive, Abingdon
	P17/V0050/O - Land north of Dunmore Road and Twelve Acre Drive, Abingdon - Appendices
	Appendix 1A - Land Use
	Land Use [A1 Landscape]
	Viewport-6
	Viewport-7
	Viewport-8


	Appendix 1B - Access & Movement
	Movement [A1 Landscape]
	Viewport-15
	Viewport-16
	Viewport-17


	Appendix 1C - Open Space Provision
	Open Space [A1 Landscape]
	Viewport-18
	Viewport-19
	Viewport-20


	Appendix 1D - Density
	Density [A1 Landscape]
	Viewport-9
	Viewport-10
	Viewport-11


	Appendix 1E - Maximum Building Heights
	Heights [A1 Landscape]
	Viewport-12
	Viewport-13
	Viewport-14


	sav_sharone_09-06-2017_08-14-06
	Appendix 2A
	Appendix 2B
	Appendix 2C
	Appendix 3 - Technical Note





